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Nan Hai Corporation Limited (“Nan Hai") (the “Company”) is a corporation listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 680). On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
present to our shareholders the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Based on its diversified core business strategic deployment, the Group
continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services, property
development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media (HK) Limited
and its subsidiaries, Dadi Cinema Investment Limited and its subsidiaries and
Oristar Technology (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"Dadi Media"), Nan Hai Development Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Nan Hai Development”) and Sino-i Technology Limited (stock
code: 250) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Sino-i"). In 2019, three
major business segments, namely culture and media services, property
development and enterprise cloud services, contributed over 90% of the
Group's revenue. In the meantime, the Group has also continued to make
steady development in relevant segments through Dadi News Media (HK)
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “News Media Business”)
as well as Dadi Innovation (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “Innovative Business”).

2019 was an extremely complicated year for the PRC economy with
significantly intensifying domestic and foreign risks and challenges. Amid such
overall operating environment, the Group'’s business development has also
been affected to some extent. In 2019, the revenue and performance of the
Group declined as compared to 2018, which was mainly due to the decrease in
the profit from property development segment which was mainly affected by
the revenue recognition and the accrued expenses of deferred income tax; and
the decrease of the performance of culture and media services which was
affected by the first time adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases. Nevertheless, the
performance of enterprise cloud services and Innovative Business segments of
the Group has been improved.

Chairman’s Statement
FREHRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRS

In 2019, through internal business integration of the Group's culture and media
services segment, the Group has further enhanced the resource sharing of
such business segment, continuously improved the construction of its “Film +"
ecosystem, and continued to consolidate and enhance its brand influence. As
for the property development segment, by maintaining abundant project
reserve, the Group has been proactively developing new high-quality projects,
including the investments in Jinghu Boulevard comprehensive catering, hotel
and commercial project on the east side of “Free Man Garden”, so as to achieve
sustainable development of its property development business. After a number
of new business attempts, the News Media Business has shown a leap-forward
growth in revenue. This business segment, especially the media content, has
considerable influence in Hong Kong market. Crabtree & Evelyn under the
Innovative Business has been adjusting its business model from a traditional
retail to an OMO operating model. As a result of the brand relaunch in the
second half of the year, Crabtree & Evelyn launched a new product and brand
image and improved its business. In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on
internal systematic construction, improve the efficiency of operation and
management and reduce its internal management costs.

Going forward, along with the continuous development of economy and
technology, the consumer market environment will be more ever-changing
with emerging new technologies and products. We will continue to develop
its three major business segments, namely culture and media services,
enterprise cloud services and property development, and look for
development opportunities in media platform and Innovative Business.
Meanwhile, we will continue to explore the OMO operating model, use
Internet technology and big data in its operations, connect online and offline
operations, upgrade existing businesses, continuously improve its operating
efficiency, improve our profitability and promote sustainable development.

- Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRS

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders for &% * RIS RE AL BB FET#H - B
their concern and support, and also to the Board, executive committee and all AR FEEE - HITEZESN T EE TN ¥
staff of the Company for their dedication and contribution. The management %57 » & &SRB T8 s N A B R RIFA KK

and | will spare no effort to lead the Company into the future. i o

Yu Pun Hoi F@E

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020 B 20203 A26H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to operate in the areas of culture and media services,
property development and enterprise cloud services, through Dadi Media, Nan
Hai Development and Sino-i, and its businesses have developed steadily. In the
meantime, the Group has also continued to make steady development in
relevant segments through News Media Business and Innovative Business.

During the year, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$9,321.2 million
(2018: HKS$16,789.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 44.5% as compared to the corresponding period of last year.
Loss for the year of the Group was approximately HK$641.4 million (2018: profit
for the year of approximately HK$974.3 million). The loss was mainly due to (i)
decrease in the profit from property development segment which is mainly
affected by the revenue recognition and the accrued expenses of deferred
income tax; and (i) decrease of the performance of culture and media services
which is affected by the first time adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases. The net assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were approximately HK$5,294.3 million
(2018: HK$6,955.3 million).

E12 B 575 & 71 i
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the revenue of this business segment was approximately
HK$4,652.8 million (2018: HK$4,931.5 million). Loss before income tax was

Management Discussion and Analysis

approximately HK$868.8 million (2018: HK$660.4 million).
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Cinema Operation

In 2019, the national gross box office in China amounted to RMB59.367 billion
(excluding service charges), representing a year-on-year increase of 4.9%. The
annual admission of audiences was approximately 1.728 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of 0.5%. There were 14 films, including 10 domestic films,
with box office over RMB1 billion and 89 films with box office over RMB100

million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & i

GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF CINEMA OPERATION OF THE GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

BZE2019F 12 A31 BXEEE Rt ED FE

Total Number\
of Cinemas
S PreiREN

502

Qinghai
58
1

National Gross Box Office

(RMB hundred million)
2EEREAE(AREBRET)

2019 [,
2018 565.80
2017 523.80
2016 457.12
2015 44069

Number of Screens in the Group's

Cinemas (pieces)
AEEEREFHE (H)

2019 TN
2018 3014
2017 2,745
2016 1,911
2015 1,481
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Number of the Group’s Cinemas

(Number)
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2018 494
2017 464
2016 350
2015 286
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the cinema business of this business segment achieved a box
office revenue (tax included) of RMB3,276 million (excluding service charges),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 1.9 %. The main reason
for the decrease was due to the dilution of box office as a result of the opening
of new cinemas in the PRC. Besides, in order to achieve higher return on
investment, this business segment laid down stricter investment return
requirements, affecting the speed of opening new cinemas to some extent.

During the year, box office of the cinema business contributed to
approximately 5.5% of the national box office revenue (tax included) with the
admission of audiences of approximately 93.76 million, maintaining its No. 2
ranking among cinema investment and management companies throughout
China. As at 31 December 2019, this business segment had an aggregate of
502 cinemas with 3,093 screens operating in 29 provinces (autonomous
regions, municipalities) and 187 cities across China.

In 2019, adhering to the “Film +" strategy, this business segment continued to
perfect the consumer spending activities within the cinema premises and
expand the scope of spending at cinema to enhance the operating efficiency
of its cinemas and further consolidate its advantageous market position in
China’s cinema operation. Leveraging on the economy of scale of the cinema
operation, this business segment insisted upon an “user-oriented” approach
centering around the demand from film-goers and deepened the “Film +”
strategy by way of diversification of cinema scenario and comprehensive
product exploration. Through the establishment of a pivot platform integrating
culture, consumer spending and other industries, it materialized “service-
oriented”, “individuality-oriented” and "brand-oriented” focus. Besides, in order
to enhance viewing experience and set up a multi-purpose cinema scenario,
this business segment has also actively provided a wide variety of integrated
entertainment including e-sports, live performance and other cultural activities,
optimizing the utilization of the cinema premises and targeting a more
diversified customer base with higher spending potential.

E12 B 575 & 71 i
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 73 i

Meanwhile, this business segment used big data to understand the spending
and behaviour patterns of the film-goers and actively developed and
deepened the reach to each film-goer by fully capitalizing on the time film-
goers stay in the cinema premises before and after viewing, further enhancing
the conversion rate of cinema users. We believe that the ever-changing pattern
of spending for experience caters to the spending behavior of those born after
the 1990s and 2000s and has become a consumption trend in the film market.
Currently, operation of this business segment’s big data-based membership
system has achieved preliminary results. The member base has been
expanding steadily with an ever-rising proportion of active members. Positive
momentum has been formed among products, resources and members. This
would further enhance the Group’s resources integration capabilities and
brand influence.

In 2019, cinema advertising business of this segment continuously provided
the customers with marketing solutions covering the entire industry chain,
established a marketing platform featuring multi-aspect consumer data,
broader customer reach and deeper interaction with customers, by integrating
the upstream and downstream as well as communication resources of the
industry, enhancing product marketability and customer servicing capabilities.
Moreover, based on the dual enhancement of business development
capabilities and media resources reservation, a number of innovative marketing
projects were completed, winning attention from film-goers and appreciation
from advertisers.

Dadi Film

In 2019, growth of the overall film market slowed down. However, quality
domestic films demonstrated further competitiveness with more films being
screened. Diversification of film genre made breakthrough and set a healthy
growth trend.

During the year, Dadi Media (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "Dadi Film”) under Dadi Media continued to develop its business
in three aspects of film content, animation and distribution.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2019, capitalizing on its own characteristics and enjoying the synergy with
other segments of the Group, this business segment insisted upon its
operating philosophy of striving for excellence while maintaining stability to
further explore its own core competitiveness and produce film projects with
market potential to meet the growing demand for quality contents by
investing in development and cooperating with top players in the industry. As
to the industry of animation contents, this business segment paid more
attention to the layout of K12 industry in 2019, including the incubation and
operation of children IP. Currently we have established cooperative relations
with world-renowned animation companies like 9 Story Media Group Inc,,
Samg Animation Co., Ltd,, etc.. Its “Mini Force” series, being a kids' favourite,
boasts a click-through rate of over 10 billion on the internet platform in the
PRC. Its toy franchises ranked third on Taobao’s toy sales chart and sixth on
search popularity chart. Other commercial cooperation partners include KFC,
Baidu, Longemont, etc..

Oristar

In 2019, Oristar Technology (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "Oristar”) has successfully transformed itself from a traditional
cinema software and equipment service provider into an internet company
serving the cinema industry. A brand new revenue management Saa$
(Software as a Service) service platform was launched for cinemas. More than
200 functions were developed on the brand new cloud structure and big data
system to enable revenue increase and cost savings for cinema operation. As at
31 December 2019, Oristar provided services for approximately 1,804 cinemas,
covering approximately 11,318 halls in 31 provinces (autonomous regions,
municipalities) across China.

During the year, Oristar focused on the advertisement business function of the
brand new SaaS service platform. It took the initiative to introduce the “Oristar
advertisement business platform” to the industry, fully realizing digitalization
and commercialization in the management of advertising resources for
cinemas in four dimensions, i.e. time, space, contents, and recipients. It
provided cinemas with a comprehensive screening management system with
fully automatic online-controlled functions in relation to management,
categorization, dispatching and screening. It also provided advertisers with
comprehensive data services covering quotation, broadcasting monitoring and
user analysis.

E12 B 575 & 71 i
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 73 i

PROSPECTS

2020 looks set to be an unusual year for the cinema industry in the PRC. The
novel coronavirus outbreak has imposed huge impact on the cinema operation
and even the overall film market. There will be significant challenges lying
ahead in the growth of the PRC film market. Seven films were withdrawn from
the Spring Festival screening schedule. Other films on the subsequent
schedule may also be affected, which will affect the operating results of the
cinema operation in the short run. We expect the PRC film market will see a
recovery in box office revenue during the summer holidays when the novel
coronavirus outbreak dies down. All in all, we remain optimistic about the
medium and long term development of the cinema industry in PRC. In 2020,
we will adhere to our core values of “client-orientedness, integrity,
proactiveness, entrepreneurship, learn-to-grow” to continue the establishment
of a film-based platform of culture and entertainment. In future, besides
optimizing the nationwide cinema layout and structure, we will strategically
focus on the cinemas in those important regions, create a specific innovative
cinema service model, and set a new benchmark for cinema service applicable
to the entire nation.

For the business of cinema operation, this business segment will continue to
implement the OMO (Online — Merge — Offline) business model, gradually
materialize the shift from scale expansion to delicate operation and from
premises operation to membership operation, continue to introduce diversified
consumption model and interests and actively promote, replicate and share
such measure in nearly 500 cinemas across the nation. This business segment
will further pursue its “Film +" strategy in terms of operation of the membership
system. In the future, this business segment will continue to introduce more
value-added services including children entertainment activities, live
performance, other cultural activities and IP related products to further enrich
members' privilege and perfect the service ecosystem of cinemas. Relying on
the diversified and unique member activities, the user consumption experience
will be further enhanced and the Group's big data resources will be increased,
providing support for the further enhancement of members’ experience and
precise marketing. For advertising business, in 2020, this business segment will
continue to strengthen the integration of OMO resources, classify and match
customer demand through digitalization of scenario and media buying,
achieve accurate performance feedback through the establishment of a
platform serving both the supply side and the demand side of cinemas, and
enhance customer service capabilities and brand influence.

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (Continued)

As for contents, Dadi Film will steadily push forward the scheduling
arrangement of films to be screened and actively identify revenue generating
channels in 2020. Dadi Film will continue to develop and produce original
Creative projects based on a strictly-controlled budget and risk management. It
will also continue to participate in more top-notch projects, create quality film
contents and maintain its reputation in the industry by capitalizing on its
advantages over resources and brand name. As for animation content industry,
this business segment will continue to effect in-depth development of the
children segment by promoting its own IPs and developing more quality IPs in
collaboration with more world-renowned animation companies.

As for the cinema revenue services, Oristar, being a service provider specialized
in cinema digitalization, will continue to focus on cost reduction and revenue
generation for cinemas, assisting cinemas to enhance their core
competitiveness. As for products, Oristar will further perfect the functions of its
cloud platform and integrate two separate platforms, namely the
advertisement platform and collecting platform, providing cinemas with
quality one-stop and internet-based products and services while saving cost
expenditure of digitalization and informatization of cinemas as well as
enhancing their operating efficiency and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, revenue of this business segment was approximately
HK$3,301.0 million (2018: HK$9,908.3 million) and profit before income tax was
approximately HK$2,762.7 million (2018: HK$6,018.3 million).

“The Peninsula” Project in Shenzhen

Located in the prime triangle zone formed by Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong
cooperation free trade zone, Houhai financial and commercial center and
Shekou free trade zone, the"Peninsula”’, a flagship project of Nan Hai
Development, commands the beautiful landscape of Shenzhen Bay Port with
three waterfronts, enjoying a perpetual seaview. The project is developed in
five phases with a total gross floor area over a million sgq.m., establishing a
diversified business format combining high-end housing, intelligent business,
smart hotel, office sharing, creative theater and yacht club etc.

Phases 1 and 2 of “The Peninsula” have been sold out. The sale of Phase 3 was
launched in April 2016 and almost sold out. The sale of Phase 4 was launched
on 23 April 2019 with the sell through rate reaching 82% on that day. As at 31
December 2019, accumulated sales amounted to approximately RMB7,445
million. Construction of the main part of the project has been completed.
Decoration works are under way and delivery is expected to take place by late
2020 or early 2021. The Group is holding 55,800 sq.m. of the commercial
portion to establish businesses including smart hotel, intelligent business and
shared offices according to the idea of “world citizen style and stay with the
trend”. Operation will be commenced by the second half of 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

“Free Man Garden” Project in Guangzhou

Located at the Guangzhou airport economic development area, adjacent to
Baiyun International Airport and Guangzhou North Comprehensive Passenger
Transportation Hub, “Free Man Garden” project of Nan Hai Development in
Guangzhou creates an eco-friendly residential area of 1.5 million square meters
in the north of Baiyun district, Guangzhou featuring new environment-friendly
concepts, scarce urban green belts and excellent community operations. It is a
complex comprising housing, commercial facilities, cinema, school, garden,
clubhouse and various large scale sports facilities, definitely a quality liveable
district with eco-friendly and oxygen-rich features in Guangzhou. The “Free
Man Garden” project comprises a total of eight phases, of which Phases 1, 2, 4
and 7 have been sold out and Phase 7 began to deliver in May 2019. The sale
of Phases 5 and 6 were launched on 1 December 2018. As at 31 December
2019, a total of 447 flats with an aggregate area of approximately 56,130 sg.m.
were sold for an sales amount of approximately RMB1,366 million. Phase 3
known as “Freedom Lane ([ B B )" with a gross floor area of approximately
36,000 sg.m. is self-owned for providing comprehensive services of catering,
entertainment and culture and commenced operation with a grand opening
held on 28 December 2019.

Moreover, this business segment actively creates a new model of operation in
real estate business and developed quality projects in various ways. Leveraging
on the experience accumulated in the development of “The Peninsula” and
"Free Man Garden” projects, the Group will continuously invest in the
construction of various quality projects, materializing a steady and sustainable
development of the property development business. Currently this business
segment is actively negotiating for concluding strategic cooperation
agreements in respect of a number of projects, including the investments in
"Jinghu Boulevard” Project in Guangzhou, which is a project sitting to the east
of "Free Man Garden”, just across the street, with a capacity building area of
78,000 sg.m., and will be developed into a commercial complex integrating
catering, hotel, entertainment, etc..
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Policies governing the operation of the property market were relatively
tightened in 2019. The authorities focused on monitoring the financial risks of
the real estate sector and maintained tightened regulation on capital flow
throughout the year. Policies specific to individual city, region and
development trend were implemented to maintain stability in the property
market. Meanwhile, operating system for the property market became
increasingly effective, laying a solid foundation for further implementing an
effective management mechanism in property development. Rigorous control,
strict regulation and tightening corporate financing will continue into 2020 but
there will be plenty of new and valuable opportunities for development after
all. At the same time, the epidemic of novel coronavirus breaking out early this
year will have impact on the construction workers returning to the cities and
the entire industry chain of the construction sector. Under the current
circumstances, Nan Hai Development will capitalize on the advantages in
existing projects, integrate the Group's industry resources and actively address
the challenges arising from the epidemic so as to proactively develop quality
projects, further optimize strategic deployment and have a good grip on
development opportunities by taking advantage of the trend of urban renewal
and the transformation and upgrading of the industry. Nan Hai Development
will continue to optimize corporate governance and talent development. It will
adopt active and reliable funding strategies to enhance internal operation and
risk control, laying a foundation for sustainable development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

By virtue of the comprehensive cloud computing infrastructure services,
e-commerce and total “Internet+" solutions offered for corporate clients in
China, this segment continued its development of digitalization and smart
operation. Having made unremitting efforts over time, this segment has
successfully established an outstanding nationwide business and localized
service network in the industry, so as to effectively address the problems of “the
last kilometer” from service providers to corporate clients. Coping with the
rapid development of mobile internet and establishment of de-centralized
network ecosystem represented by WeChat applet, the full network responsive
portal developed on existing portal products as well as the foreign trade
industry solutions launched by A 1 &) 71 B £ I8 9 B IR 2 &l (CE Dongli
Technology Company Limited, “CE Dongli") under this business segment have
effectively met the clients’ demands for portal marketing. Apart from this, in
order to meet the clients’ increasing demand for online and offline trading
businesses, CE Dongli has launched the digitalized e-commerce business in a
timely manner, providing its clients with one-stop solutions featuring online
and offline marketing and operation. Coupled with the cloud computing
services of Jb T 48 B fF B B 1T B IR 2 7] Beijing Xinnet Cyber
Information Company Limited, “Xinnet”), CE Dongli played a significant role in
growing the number of users.

During the year, with CE Dongli and Xinnet being its main operating entities,
this business segment was committed to the development of cloud services
for corporate digitalization and smart operation by providing comprehensive
laaS (Infrastructure as a Service), SaaS application, corporate e-commerce
services, “corporate digitalization transformation” total solutions and big data-
based business intelligence cloud services to China market. During the year,
revenue of this business segment was approximately HK$957.4 million (2018:
HK$997.9 million). Loss before income tax was approximately HK$68.0 million
(2018: HK$125.1 million).

E12 B 575 & 71 i

RBEER

AEBHPFIEATRECEEPRE 2 OB
EEMRERYE  EFEHBEM [ BB+ KRR
RADEOER L FHEEEEBTFCEREEE
2o BBRITHNE N BERNBILTER
BE-EN2EENEBNNCREEE - F
MR T RGADNCEEPHN [HE—RE| M
R - HEEZER B EMBNSRERMUME/ D
RERRROER PR ERNRT - KEH
PN BRI AMEENERAR(F
NWDNERBEMFPEMMER EHEHN2REREA
PFIFPA RS EINE R P BN BITERIRT
B BRNRETEPHMIPHEREBN TR
B BRULZIN RMREPHRER TR SR
EBHRRENTR  PEPNERHELTHT
ERED REFPRHRLETEHEE 8L
fRARTTE  MIERHRBBEERMERAA
((FWDHEAERE —EENAPENERE
BT BB ERER

FR - RNEBBPIMINRCERTERLEEE
IRIEEERE - UETZLEEFCES N RIEA
AT - EAIFBITISRME R AR 1aaS (i
BMEENERTS) ~ SaaSTER C DE B TEBERE
[(DEH TR | ZEBAR R T T A R E R K EUE
B REERTS o FN - AEEHPT 2 WEL
95741878 7L (20184F : 99798 ) » FTEH
HIETIE 4 B 0680188 L (20184F « 125184 7T) °

)

Annual Report 2019 / “E—NFEFR



Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 73 i

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
CE Dongli

With 20 years’ experience as a service provider for enterprises in China, CE
Dongli has successfully established a SaaS product system that meets the
demand for management digitalization from enterprises, established a market
for corporate services in which top players of various industries were involved
as cooperative partners, and established an extensive network for business and
localized services, providing corporate digitalization and operation solutions.
During the year, with the advent of 5G network, CE Dongli introduced the full
network responsive portal product targeting optimization of mobile internet
experience. Hence, the number of potential users increased while enhancing
users’ experience. For industrial solutions, the launch of foreign trade portal
was well-received by the market. The number of foreign trade customers
increased by more than 1,600 during the year. For the smart business aspect,
CE Dongli launched "Youyi” (5 ) cloud digital products, providing such all-
chain digital services as mobile marketplace, applet, and smart store for
customers in the consumer retail industry. In addition to providing
digitalization and operation solutions for SMEs, CE Dongli also continued to
expand its major client base by providing the “MarTech” digitalization and
smart operation flagship services for more high-end customers. Since the
launching of high-end customized brand CE Ultimate (F {&/& £ ), CE Dongli
has provided digital operation services for more than 300 well-known
companies (that are Fortune Global 500 companies and top 100 companies in
various industries in China), enjoying a better competitiveness in various
industries including finance, real estate, medical, retail and education, etc..
Meanwhile, in the course of meeting the high-end customers’ needs for
complicated digitalization, CE Dongli persistently built up its strengths in
products and services, performed sampling and integration, and gradually
developed specific products and industry solutions that meet the needs of
different industries and customers of different stages by relying on the support
of the product research center, cooperated with a number of well-known
service providers of corporate digital services to create an ecosystem for
providing enterprises with value-oriented digital services. For new product
research, CE Dongli has gradually formed a Paa$S (Platform as a service) platform
supported by the middle structure of business (2757 &) to promptly come
up with flexible and feasible products and industry solutions according to the
needs of different industries and customers of different stages. Hence, it
significantly improved the delivery efficiency of product development and laid
a solid foundation for integrating more cooperative partners in future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Xinnet

During the year, Xinnet continued its cloud services such as laaS, domain name
hosting and synergistic communication for SMEs and microenterprises through
internet access and the nationwide distributor channels. In 2019, Xinnet
completed the shift towards the building of a mixed cloud computing platform
based on the public cloud computing platform, generally forming a mixed
cloud structure and the capabilities of providing cloud products and services.
Cloud service capabilities of laaS and PaaS were further enhanced based on the
mixed cloud, and the cloud service ecosystem of Xinnet was enriched by
combining big data and artificial intelligence. On this basis, Xinnet regarded its
public cloud products as its core and provided users with more extensive
value-added products and a more comprehensive cloud service experience
through the application and service market.

PROSPECTS

The management of this business segment considers that with the rapid
development of mobile internet and gradual establishment of a de-centralized
business model, enterprises in China have witnessed a wave of digitalization
transformation, and smart corporate services based on big data will be
developed. At this particular moment and under the current requirements for
development, cloud services and industrial solutions for corporate digitalization
and smart operation will enjoy enormous room for development. Besides,
China enterprises will commit further resources to digitalization transformation
which has become the common goal for China enterprises to achieve quality
existence and development. Going forward, this segment will continue to
improve its support and servicing capabilities for online/offline operations by
regarding users as its core, relying on the industry and making full use of the
Internet, so as to promptly respond to the needs and problems of enterprises
and provide solutions in a timely manner. In respect of product applications,
with an in-depth understanding of the industry’s business scenarios, the Group
will promptly respond to the needs of business scenarios in different industries
based on the cloud product model, the middle structure of business (275
A') and Saa$ applications. Furthermore, this segment will also increase its
capital investment in data centre, cloud computing technology, automatic
operation and maintenance technology, big data technology as well as smart
marketing technology, generally enhancing its core competence of technology
to further develop and optimize its products and services for enterprises’ digital
intelligent business scenario.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NEWS MEDIA BUSINESS

Business Review

There are two business divisions under the news media business, namely
"HKO1" and “Duowei Media". This business segment integrated the content and
editing operations of “HK01” and “Duowei Media” to increase synergy and cost-
effectiveness in 2019. During the year, revenue of this business segment was
approximately HK$89.6 million (2018: HK$222.0 million), and revenue from
third parties increased from approximately HK$54.3 million to approximately
HK$89.6 million. Loss before income tax was approximately HK$387.9 million
(2018: HK$385.9 million).

Based in Hong Kong, this business segment has more than 790 employees. It is
a pioneer of advocacy media, aiming at creating an internet lifestyle platform, a
brand new idea of combining internet with news media business, for Hong
Kong people. During the year, apart from developing the news media business,
this business segment has stepped up its efforts in developing “01 Heart
(0122 &))", a charity platform, “01 Run Together (01 & #1)" a running services
platform, and "eatojoy (e i1 )", a self-collection takeaway ordering platform. It
also established the "HKshopNet (— #9 #T )", an online shopping rebate
platform, “Book Book Travel ( N N2)", a travel services platform, and focused
on developing the related membership economy. Various offline events, such
as the “ The 1st Hong Kong Martial Arts Expo (55 — @ & 8 Rl MG B &S
)", community markets under the “01 4t [& % & 4 5+ 2", "HKO1 Economic
Summit 2019 ([ & 0120194 B = & 3 1)’ were held and online
activities, such as "2019 [@ 3% E H " and "01 Entertainment Award (01 5 & B 1%
£4 K #%)" were organized, with an aim to provide Hong Kong people with a
more comprehensive and quality internet services featuring news and
information with online and offline activities complementing each other.

During the year, active users of the webpages and mobile applications of this
business segment reached over 1.5 million on average, nearly doubling over
last year. The number of active users of “HKO1” was over 2.3 million at the peak.
In respect of page views, the average number of daily page views of the
webpages and mobile applications approached 19 million, increasing more
than two times as compared to that in 2018. Page views of "HK01” approached
57 million at the peak. As at 31 December 2019, the number of members of
this business segment was over 1 million, more than two-fold of last year. With
high quality news reports, this business segment achieved remarkable results
by winning a number of news awards, including four US Telly Awards and the
Awards for Editorial Excellence ({ % & £ # 31 & 48 )) by The Society of
Publishers in Asia. In terms of corporate and customer activities, we won four
Spark Awards (S E 1 K 48), two MARKies Awards and two Mob-Ex Awards.
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NEWS MEDIA BUSINESS (Continued)

Prospects

This business segment strives to establish an internet lifestyle platform for
Hong Kong people. For the media aspect, we plan to strengthen the contents
of social news, entertainment news and lifestyle articles in the future, coupled
with online and offline promotion, to reach a wider spectrum of viewers and
secure the leading position in Hong Kong media. Moreover, we will step up our
efforts in developing the activity platform of “01 Space (01 Z=f&)”, continue to
promote membership economy and activate “01 points (0118  %3")" for gift
redemption and charitable causes, establishing ourselves as a leading internet
lifestyle platform in Hong Kong.

INNOVATIVE BUSINESS

Business Review

During the year, revenue was approximately HK$255.5 million (2018: HK$831.9
million) and loss before income tax was approximately HK$382.3 million (2018:
HK$1,047.8 million).

Within the industry, younger consumers continued to turn to smaller,
innovative brands with strong social followings and digital foundations. This
trend drove high business valuations and acquisition by traditional leaders
fighting to remain relevant. Under this background, the full year numbers are
different from that of 2018 due to the conclusion of the legacy retail and
distributor businesses which was fully executed in the first half of 2019, and the
up-front investment in the brand relaunch from July 2019. As a result of the
restructuring, operating costs were dramatically reduced in 2019.

Crabtree & Evelyn'’s strategy has been to transform from a traditional retail to
an OMO operating model, and to pursue the OMO development path starting
from e-commerce. This vision placed Crabtree & Evelyn ahead of the industry.
During the year, Crabtree & Evelyn exited its retail stores and sold its existing
warehouses and manufacturing sites for a good return. While traditional retail
companies struggled, Crabtree & Evelyn relaunched its entire brand and
product lines in July 2019.

As part of this relaunch, Crabtree & Evelyn introduced 3 new ranges (Evelyn
Rose, Crabtree, The Gardeners), 40 new products, and 50 reformulations of
consumer favourites from The Archives, and several of these new products
have received extraordinary customer reviews and won industry awards. These
launches were powered by a new global e-commerce platform and supply
chain operation, and an organization restructured for speed and agility in a
digital world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INNOVATIVE BUSINESS (Continued)

Prospects

In 2020, Crabtree & Evelyn will aggressively expand its brand foundation,
customer base, and product portfolio across the world as well as implement
global control of pricing and discounting which will significantly improve gross
margins. Crabtree & Evelyn will continue to expand online social marketing
including e-commerce operations and fully immerse into China market, to
further strengthen and extend influence of Crabtree & Evelyn’s global brand.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group continued to adopt prudent funding and treasury policies. As at 31
December 2019, net assets attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$4,696.0 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$6,199.8 million), including cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$11,720.6 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$8,297.6 million) which were mainly denominated in US dollars, Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's aggregate
borrowings were approximately HK$18,853.0 million (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$19,959.8 million), of which approximately HK$10,625.9
million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$11,759.1 million) were bearing
interest at fixed rates while approximately HK$8,227.1 million (31 December
2018: approximately HK$8,200.7 million) were at floating rates. The Group has
partially managed interest rate risk through interest rate swap.

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is calculated as the net debt divided by
the adjusted capital plus net debt was approximately 57.40% (31 December
2018: approximately 62.64%).

As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitment of the Group was
approximately HK$525.9 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$263.6
million), of which approximately HK$16.6 million would be used for the
renovation of property in Beijing, approximately HK$65.0 million would be
used as capital expenditures for the expansion of its cinema business and
approximately HK$444.3 million would be used for property development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E12 B 575 & 73 i

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's contingent liabilities were approximately
HK$21.1 million in connection with the guarantees given to secure credit
facilities (31 December 2018: approximately HK$20.4 million).

As at 31 December 2019, certain right-of-use assets, buildings, other property,
plant and equipment, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, investment properties and bank deposits with a total
net carrying value of approximately HK$15,083.3 million were pledged to
secure the credit facilities granted to the Group (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$11,997.2 million). In addition, trading securities with a
carrying value of approximately HK$0.2 million and certain shares of several
subsidiaries were pledged and bank accounts were charged for securing the
Group's credit facilities (31 December 2018: approximately HK$0.2 million).

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group are set
out in notes 29 and 31 to the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group operated mainly in the PRC, and its operating expenses and
revenue were primarily denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its reporting currency, and the reported assets,
liabilities and results may be affected by Renminbi exchange rate. As the
majority of the Group's borrowings were primarily denominated in US dollars
and Renminbi, it was exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group has partially
managed such risk through cross currency swap. The Group will still keep
reviewing and monitoring the fluctuation in exchange rates between relevant
currencies and consider using foreign exchange hedging instruments from
time to time to minimize the risk exposure arising from changes in exchange
rates. The Group will also proactively choose the type of currency for assets and
liabilities based on its prejudgment of currency trend under practicable
circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company employs and remunerates its employees based on their
qualifications, experience and performance. In addition to basic salary
payments, other benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory
provident fund, group medical insurance, group personal accident insurance
and examination leave. Employees are eligible to be granted share options
under the Company's share option scheme at the discretion of the Board of
the Company. In general, salary review is conducted annually. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had 18,789 employees (2018: 21,745 employees).
The salaries of and allowances for employees for the year ended 31 December
2019 were about approximately HK$2,222.0 million (2018: HK$2,519.8 million).
The Group focuses on providing skill and quality training for various levels of
staff, and provides on-the-job capability training to its staff; in respect of staff
quality, corresponding training on personal work attitude and work habits is
also provided.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

The Board herein present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the year,
the Group was principally engaged in culture and media services, property
development, enterprise cloud services, news media business and innovative
business.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Particulars of the Group's revenue and segment information for the year are set
out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing is provided in the Risk Management and Internal Control section on
pages 77 to 83 of this annual report and a fair review of the Group’s business
during the year, and the probable future business development of each
segment of the Company are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 8 to 31 of this annual report. Also, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in note 52 to
the financial statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2019 are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary on
page 292 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group's
environmental policies, relationships with its consumers and employees and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are all contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 84 to 116 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 126.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the
declaration of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the
year ended 31 December 2018: 0.15 HK cents per ordinary share).
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 292.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements
respectively.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCING

Details of the bank and other borrowings and financing of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in notes 29 and 31 to the financial statements
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

During the year, details of the movements in share capital and share premium
of the Company are set out in notes 37 and 39 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

During the year, details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the Company's reserves available for
distribution was approximately HK$1,302.1 million. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account with a balance of approximately HK$11,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's sales to the five largest customers and purchases from the five
largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2019 accounted for less than
30.00% of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

Report of the Directors
EEE8RS

AFEMBRHE

TEEBERAEVREE XE BEERAGE Y
BEHNE22E -

MxE  BEREE

FR - AEEBZYE - BEASRBZE
R BHmEMFEI3 -
MEBARIRBRELAR
AARF2019F12A3BZ TEM B MBS R
RIZFHED RIER IS HmERMI 16 & 17

SR

BTRAMEERMNE
ANEBR2019F12A3BZRTREMEER
& 2 5B D BB B A R B RE 29 2 31 o

BRERKRDRE

FR - ARBBRARKRGREEZ B FBEHRY
FERARMIFE37 K39 ©

f#lm

FR - ARERANEBEE 2 BB EHN TG
HwERMIFE39©

T 4 53 i 6

RATR2019F 12 A3 BAI MR EBEHL B
BO2VEBTT o o AABRDBEEERND A
11,0008 70 * AIEE R AL IR 2 VR ES -

FEERREER

AEERAAEFPAAREEEEZE2019F 128
STELFEZHERBERDL DG AEE
U RE R IE E R D 30.00% ©

Annual Report 2019 / “E—NFEFR




Report of the Directors
EEERS

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company made charitable
donations and other donations amounting to approximately HK$3,405,000.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The director below is deemed to be interested in the business which competes
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with business of the Group
and is required to make disclosure of interests pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

Ms. Liu Rong, an executive director of the Company, is a director and ultimate
shareholder of ER KB £ A& H AR AT (GD Cinema Circuit
Company Limited*) (“GD Cinema Circuit”). GD Cinema Circuit invests in cinema
business and therefore is deemed to compete with the cinema investment
business of the Group. However, the Board believes that the competition does
not pose any material threat to the Group's business prospects due to the fact
that the cinemas operated by the Group and the cinemas invested by the
above-mentioned director who is interested in the competing business focus
on different market segments.

In 2019, most of the cinemas invested by GD Cinema Circuit are managed by
the cinema management company controlled by the Group by way of
entrusted management. We will make disclosure of such connected
transaction according to the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules when necessary.

In order to further safeguard the interest of the Group, those directors not
interested in the competing business review on a regular basis the businesses
and operations of the Group to ensure that its businesses are run on the basis
that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from, GD Cinema Circuit.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit plans in respect of the year are set out in note 44
to the financial statements.

* For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors
EEE8RS

DIRECTORS BEE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of thisreport ~ RERREEAFEHE - KRG ZzEF0T -
were as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman) TRBRE(ERE)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer) BRI+ (7T ARE)

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan?* MERERAE

Mr. Lung King Cheong? (retired with effect from 30 May 2019) BESELE (H2019%F 5 A 30 HFERT)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung* BIZER

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning* HREf L

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang* A ERE S

‘ Non-executive directors : FERITESR

* Independent non-executive directors * BAUFNITES

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the existing ~ AA T EEEARARRSRAB I IEHITESEL
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirming his 7 FEHMRAE  HRERBHSHES TR
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing ([ EfT#R 8] ) B3 13ERAA R 2B M - A
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the  RAIRAZEESHE I NARNF] °

Company considers that such directors are independent to the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws (‘Bye- Laws”), Mr.Yu  1BIEZA QTR A GBI ([ ]) E oo & - F58
Pun Hoi, Mr. Lam Bing Kwan and Mr. Xiao Sui Ning shall retire at the 4 - MFEFLLE - BEELEEBRER ZIKE
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"). All of the above retiring FEF A€ ((RERBFEAL]) FHAERT -6 L

directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. MUREE RS BRI B EIEEE -
Annual Report 2019 / “E—NFEFR



Report of the Directors
EEERS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors of the Company and senior management
of the Group as at the date of this report were as follows:

Biographical Details of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi, aged 61, holding a degree of Doctor of Philosophy conferred
by Peking University, joined the Board in September 2000. Mr. Yu is the
chairman of the Board, the chairman of nomination committee of the
Company, and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi is also an executive director and a member of nomination
committee of Sino-i, and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Liu Rong, aged 48, graduated from the Law School of Anhui University
with a Bachelor degree in Laws, and got a Master of Laws conferred by the Law
Institute of Chinese Academy of Social Science, and is also a qualified lawyer in
the PRC. In addition, Ms. Liu graduated from the International MBA School of
National School of Development of Peking University in 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Liu worked in Chinese government departments and law firms.

Ms. Liu joined Sino-i group in April 2002 and has been appointed as an
executive director and a member of executive committee of the Company
since March 2009, a member of nomination committee since March 2017, the
chief executive officer of the Company since February 2018, and the chairlady
of executive committee of the Company since October 2019.

Ms. Liu is also the chairlady of the board of directors, the chairlady of
nomination committee and a director of a number of subsidiaries of Sino-i, and
a director and/or general manager of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan, aged 70, graduated from the University of Oregon in the
United States of America with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in
1974. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lam had accumulated extensive
experience in industries such as banking, property development and
investment business.

Mr. Lam joined the Board in September 2000, and was re-designated as a non-
executive director in April 2002. Mr. Lam is also a non-executive director of
Sino-i, and an independent non-executive director of Lai Sun Development
Company Limited, Lai Sun Garment (International) Limited and Lai Fung
Holdings Limited. The securities of the above mentioned companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung, aged 59, graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
and awarded an honours degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy in 1991,
and also holds an MBA conferred by the University of Hull, UK. Mr. Lau is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau is a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and started his public practice business in 1998. He is now the
person-in-charge of Messrs. Fung Lau & Company, Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Lau joined the Board in May 2006 and is also a member of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. In March 2012, Mr. Lau has
been appointed as a member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Lau was appointed as the chairman of audit committee of the Company in
September 2013.

Report of the Directors
EEE8RS

EERERETEARBESRN (W)

EEBERFS (&)

B TTER

MREERE 705 MI4FEEREFB LM
KB BFEIRERETEN - IARNERR -
MAEBG2EBITR  MEBEREEE
EWETEABLEERH -

MECHEFR2000F9AMAEEE - H2002F4 A
WHATAIENTES - MEERBAPEETHE 2
FRITES  URABEBHERARAF - BIE
KEBRERARRBEERERAFZEILIEH
TEE - LM AR ZBHRBEERFT L -

BUHNITESE

BIERKE 5957 0 R 1991 FEENFEWT A
2. BESBLENBEET BN R EBKERA
EBTHEREBELTEN - AAEAERBFARE
AHEiAE - B ERBEBIETemAerE
BEHMAEMNERTE - LR EYES
ETRMITA 1998 FFAENEE » IR AKBRISF AR
(RESFTRNBEA -

2 ER2006F5s AMAESS - WHEAERR
AIEZEZESGNFMEESKE  K20129F3A
HEABERABIRBEZEGKE - R2013F9A -
BT AARRBREESTRE -

)

Annual Report 2019 / “E—NFEFR



Report of the Directors
EEERS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, aged 72, graduated from Yunnan Finance and
Management College (EF & EE B # E2t) majoring in enterprise
management. Mr. Xiao is recognised as a senior economist by Bank of
Communications.

Mr. Xiao joined the Board in April 2016 and has been appointed as the
chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xiao is also an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of remuneration committee, and a member of
audit committee and nomination committee of Sino-i.

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang, aged 70, holds a Bachelor's Degree in Arts from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ho served in different
managerial positions in banking industry both in Hong Kong and China during
the period from about 1973 to 1988. During the period from about 1989 to
1991, Mr. Ho was in Canada running his own business. In about 1992, Mr. Ho
joined the Group and worked as a general manager of the property division of
the Group, who left the Group in July 2009 and engaged in the position of
chief operating officer of a private company engaged in coal mining and iron
sand mining businesses in Indonesia and the Philippines respectively.

Mr. Ho joined the Board in September 2016 and has been appointed as a
member of audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Ho is also an independent non-executive
director and a member of audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of Sino-i.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. Chen Ming Fei (aged 43)
General Manager
B DRI D AR A A (CE Dongli Technology Company Limited)

General Manager
b ARG (S BT B R A 7] (Beijing Xinnet Cyber Information Company
Limited)

Mr. Chen, has engaged in sales for a number of years, and possesses acute
insight in IT business, and has extensive and professional experiences in
product creation, business strategy planning and business management. Prior
to joining Sino-i group, Mr. Chen worked in Vorwerk of Co. KG, a German
company.

In 2000, Mr. Chen joined CE Dongli, and was appointed as a national
commercial director, sales deputy general manager, executive deputy general
manager and business general manager. In January 2012, Mr. Chen was
promoted to a general manager, responsible for operation management of CE
Dongli. Mr. Chen is also the general manager of Xinnet, responsible for
operation management of Xinnet. Mr. Chen is also an executive director and a
general manager of Sino-i, and a director and/or general manager of a number
of subsidiaries of Sino-i. In January 2018, Mr. Chen was appointed as the chief
executive officer of Sino-i.

Mr. Chen is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xue Bo Ying (aged 51)
General Manager
Nan Hai Development Limited

General Manager
I B 3k F B 2= B % B R A & (The Peninsula Shenzhen Property
Development Co., Ltd.)

Mr. Xue graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology and
obtained a Master degree in architecture from Tsinghua University, and is a
certified first-level architect and a certified town planner in the PRC. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xue worked in such senior positions as deputy general
manager, senior architect and architectural design director in a number of
corporations, and also worked in Guangzhou City Construction Commission.

Mr. Xue joined the Group in January 2006 as an architectural design director,
responsible for overall architectural design of various property projects of the
Group in the PRC. In February 2009, Mr. Xue was appointed as an executive deputy
general manager of Nan Hai Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and was promoted to general manager in July 2010 and appointed
as a general manager of RIS HFE MEF B2 (The Peninsula
Shenzhen Property Development Co,, Ltd).

Mr. Xue is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Biographical Details of Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Xu Heran (aged 44)

Mr. Xu Heran had more than 10 years' experience in enterprise management
and accumulated in-depth experience and knowledge in culture and media
services sector. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu was the general manager
of CFG — BARCO (Beijing) Electronics Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xu graduated from Peking University and obtained a Doctor degree in
Philosophy. Mr. Xu joined the Company in November 2018 as a chief strategy
officer and is responsible for operation management of cinema and cinema
related businesses of the Company from June 2019.

Mr. Xu is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Yang (aged 44)

Mr. Zhang Yang holds a Bachelor degree in automation from Tsinghua
University, and a Master degree in business and information technology from
The University of Melbourne. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang worked
as strategy consulting director of information technology in Accenture (China)
Co., Ltd, and also worked as vice president in JD.com (" & ").

Mr. Zhang joined the Company in 2017 as a vice general manager, being
responsible for information work, and the strategic transformation of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhang is also a member of executive committee of the Company, and a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company

Long and short positions in shares in issue
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Approximate

Capacity/ Number of percentage
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
EEpgg B4, ERtE FrERGEE BOL B 5
Yu Pun Hoi ("Mr. Yu") Corporate interest 40,673,177,261(L) 59.25% 1
T ([ FEED NEERS 10,862,068,966(S) 15.82% 2

Notes: Bzt -

1. These 40,673,177,261 shares were collectively held by Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, 1. %% 40673177261 RIEMD D RIH T4 FRESEHE
Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and Unicorn Assets Group Limited KA B K M 12 A% B BR A A F # & & % A #) Rosewood
companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company Assets Ltd. * Pippen Limited * Staverley Assets Limited * First
wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Best Assets Limited 2 Unicorn Assets Group Limited & 2% 5

5o

2. These 10,862,068,966 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly wholly 2. 5%2510862,068066 IR T A FBHEEZEHEENR
owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. AR AL A PR A B R 2 B A B9Pippen Limited K3 -

3. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position. 3. (LIEFA - O XA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Associated Corporations

As disclosed above, Mr. Yu is entitled to control the exercise of more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of the Company. As such, Mr. Yu
is taken to be interested in the shares of the associated corporations of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Sino-i is a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and is an associated corporation of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. As at 31 December 2019,
the interests of the directors of the Company in shares and underlying shares
of Sino-i were as follows:

Sino-i

Long position in shares in issue

EERRG RAMKG Z R R %
2 (&)

L

MR - TEERARRRREAE LT
HIITEBB =D — 28R - At - FrEmiR
BRANTREEE (EEREFEHFRHAEGDE
XVED) Z B R b A i - P B EUE AR 1 PR B 22
FrEm - BIBFEHF RS GKAIEXVES - R AR
NaE)ZFABEE - R2019F12A31H - AR
EERPREEBEES 2D RAEBRGD 2 =
T

ST C
REBTREZHE

Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held holding Notes
FERBEA
EEpE B ERtE FEROEE Batt B &
Mr. Yu Corporate interest 12,838,585,316(L) 59.11% 1
TEE NRER
Notes: st -

1. These 12,838,585,316 shares were collectively held by Goalrise Investments Limited, View
Power Investments Limited and Wise Advance Investments Limited, all of which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yu was taken to be interested in these shares by
virtue of his controlling interests in shares of the Company.

2. (L) denotes long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 May 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, share options may be granted to directors, employees of
the Group and those who have contributed or will contribute to the Group at
any time within ten years after its adoption at the discretion of the Board.

Since the adoption of the Scheme and during the year ended 31 December
2019, no share options have been granted under the Scheme by the Company.
No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the Company
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 and there were
no outstanding share options under the Scheme as at 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report.

A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution or would-be contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interests (the
“Invested Entity”).

(2) Participants

The participants include:

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors but not any non- executive director) of the
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

C. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

d. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

e. any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

f. any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

g. any ex-employee who has contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group and any Invested Entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme and the limit on the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No share options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will
result in such limit exceeded. As at the date of this report, the number of
shares available for issue in respect thereof is 6,864,553,579 shares
representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each participant under the Scheme and any
other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1 per cent. of the relevant class of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the Scheme and to the relevant rules under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under a share option

The period within which the shares must be taken up a share option
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of
grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant share option.

Minimum period for exercising a share option

The Board may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

The share option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
of HKS$1.00 in favour of the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof, is received by the Company. To the extent that the offer is
not accepted within 28 days in the manner aforesaid, it will be deemed
to have been irrevocable declined and lapsed automatically.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(8) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall be a price
determined by the directors of the Company, but it must be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the share.

(9)

Remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on
29 May 2012 up to 28 May 2022.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than the statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph “Connected Transactions”, “Continuing
Connected Transactions” and “Related Party Transactions” below, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
any directors of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, save and except so far as the provisions
of the Bye-Laws shall be avoided by any provisions of the statutes, the directors,
managing directors, alternate directors, auditors, secretary and other officers
for the time being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective
executors or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they
shall incur or sustain through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and
dishonesty respectively, and none of them shall be answerable for the acts,
receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for joining in any receipt
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects of the Company shall be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for the insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of the Company shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss,
misfortune or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by or
through their own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty respectively.

The Bermuda Companies Act permits a company to exempt and indemnify its
directors and officers from liability in the following terms:

A company may in its bye-laws or in any contract or arrangement
between the company and any officer, or any person employed by the
company as auditor, exempt such officer or person from, or indemnify
him in respect of, any loss arising or liability attaching to him by virtue of
any rule of law in respect of any negligence, default, breach of any duty
or breach of trust of which the officer or person may be guilty in relation
to the company or any subsidiary thereof.

Any provision, whether contained in the bye-laws of a company or in
any contract or arrangement between the company and any officer, or
any person employed by the company as auditor, exempting such
officer or person from, or indemnifying him against any liability which by
virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to him in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty of which he may be guilty in relation to the company
shall be void.

This indemnification may also cover any liabilities which the officer incurs in
defending any proceedings (criminal or civil) where relief is granted to him,
where he is acquitted, or where judgement is given in his favour. A company
may advance money to an officer for the costs of defending proceedings, on
the condition that the advance shall be repaid if any allegation of fraud or
dishonesty is proven.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
controlling shareholder had a material interest subsisted during the year ended
31 December 2019.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2019, and no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries has been entered into during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHANGE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There was no change in the Board since the date of the Company’s 2019
interim report and up to the date of this report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
since the date of the Company’s 2019 interim report, resigned as an
independent director of Beijing SPC Environment Protection Tech Co., Ltd.
(listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 2573) in October 2019.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company remunerates its employees based on their qualifications,
experience and performance. In addition to basic salary payments, other
benefits include housing, contributions to mandatory provident fund, group
medical insurance, group personal accident insurance and examination leave
and etc. Employees are eligible to be granted share options under the
Company'’s share option scheme at the discretion of the Board. In general,
salary review is conducted annually.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31 December 2019, those persons (other than directors and chief R 2019%F 12 A31 H » RIEARQ [)IZBRFHF 5 & 2
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in shares or &I 336 1§17 E 2 i MrscsE - UL FAT
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be ARAREBERESTERABRBRIN RARQR 2K
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: i gﬂﬁ AR IEEERS AR

FERREZHZRIKE

/\

Approximate
percentage of

Name of person holding an interest
in shares which has been disclosed to

the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 Number of  issued share capital

of Part XV of the SFO Nature of interest shares held of the Company

RFERBESRPERHIEXVEE2R3 S HAERABE BT

BEEAARARERDERZALTER HE Rt E FRROBE BREZBOBD

Dadi Holdings Limited Corporate interest 40,673,177,261 (L) 59.25% 1

KERAERD NERER 10,862,068,966 (S) 15.82% 4

Rosewood Assets Ltd. Beneficial interest 8,041,150,210 (L) 11.71% 1
BaEn

Pippen Limited Beneficial interest 14,830,245,497 (L) 21.60% 1
EnEn 10,862,068,966 (S) 15.82%

Staverley Assets Limited Beneficial interest 4,893,197,974 (L) 7.12% 1
Ban

First Best Assets Limited Beneficial interest 9,544,736,998 (L) 13.90% 1
BaEn

Kung Ai Ming Corporate interest 6,530,443,498 (L) 9.51% 2

BEH NEER 6,461,043,498 (S) 9.41%

Yu Ben Hei Corporate interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 2

TARE NEER 6,461,043,498 (S) 9.41%

Macro Resources Ltd. Beneficial interest 4,361,043,498 (L) 6.35% 2
BanER 4,361,043,498 (5) 6.35%

Lim Siew Choon Corporate interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3

eSS NEIER

Empire Gate Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 5,514,986,997 (L) 8.03% 3
it 4o

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Security interest 10,862,068,966 (L) 15.82% 5
BER

China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 10,862,068,966 (L) 15.82% 5
B

CITIC Capital Holdings Limited Corporate interest 2,056,850,000 (L) 3%
NEER
Security interest 6,461,043,498 (L) 941% 6
gt

CITIC Capital Equity Investment (Tianjin) Beneficial interest 1,089,450,000(L) 1.58%

Corporation Limited EnEm

Security interest 6,461,043498 (L) 941% 6
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS (Continued)

Notes:

1. Rosewood Assets Ltd., Pippen Limited, Staverley Assets Limited, First Best Assets Limited and
Unicorn Assets Group Limited are companies indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu. Their interests in shares are disclosed
as the corporate interests of Mr. Yu above.

2. Macro Resources Ltd. and K Resources Group Limited are held as to 50% each by Ms. Kung Ai
Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei, the son of Mr. Yu. Their respective interest in 4,361,043,498 and
2,100,000,000 shares were included as interest held by Ms. Kung Ai Ming and Mr. Yu Ben Hei.
Ms. Kung Ai Ming owns interest of 69,400,000 shares through Redmap Resources Limited, her
wholly owned company.

3. Empire Gate Industrial Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Lim Siew Choon. Its interest in shares
was included as interest held by Mr. Lim Siew Choon.

4. These 10,862,068,966 shares were charged by Pippen Limited, a company indirectly wholly
owned by Mr. Yu through Dadi Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu.

5. These 10,862,068,966 shares were security interest indirectly held by Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. through China Construction Bank Corporation, CCB International Group Holdings Limited,
CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCB International
Overseas Limited.

6. These 6,461,043,498 shares were security interest indirectly held by CITIC Capital Holdings
Limited through CITIC Capital MB Investment Limited, Prestige Way Holdings Limited, Prestige
Way Limited, CITIC Capital Equity Investment (Tianjin) Corporation Limited and Infinite
Benefits Limited.

7. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person (other than
directors and chief executive of the Company) had notified to the Company
any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
which was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 50 to the
financial statements.

Save for the transactions mentioned in the below section headed “Connected
Transaction” and the section headed “"Continuing Connected Transactions”
which are subject to the disclosure and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to all connected transaction
requirements when any of the relevant the agreements is renewed or its terms
are varied pursuant to Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules, certain transactions
mentioned under the note also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connecting transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’” approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
these connected transactions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 24 December 2019, Dadi Cinema (HK) Limited(“Dadi Cinema (HK)"), A 3t B
REZ 3 EE (AL R) BR A (Dadi Century Film Culture Media (Beijing)
Company Limited®) (‘Dadi Century’), ® K B IL g K EE R & ¥
T E(ERA %) Ningbo Yishan Cinema Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership)*) (“Ningbo Yishan”) and & B K i % Bt 2 &% B R & &
(Guangdong Dadi Cinema Construction Limited*) (“Guangdong Dadi") entered
into the capital injection agreement in relation to the capital injection of
RMB1,200,000,000 into the registered capital of Guangdong Dadi made by
Dadi Cinema (HK) and Dadi Century. The registered capital of Guangdong Dadi
will be increased from RMB1,146,427,999 to RMB2,346,427,999, of which Dadi
Cinema (HK) and Dadi Century will inject RMB526,330,442 and RMB673,669,558
to Guangdong Dadi respectively by converting their respective shareholder’s
loans into equity. Upon completion of the capital injection, the equity interest
of Dadi Cinema (HK), Dadi Century and Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong Dadi will
be 41.74%, 53.42% and 4.84%, respectively. No further capital injection will be
made by Ningbo Yishan under the capital injection agreement.

On 24 December 2019, 20% interest in Ningbo Yishan is held by Ms. Liu, an
executive director of the Company, and 80% interest in Ningbo Yishan is held
by I RAHMETHIEEEBEE(BRER) (Beijing Dadi Dreamworks
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)*), an associate of Ms. Liu. As such,
Ningbo Yishan is an associate of Ms. Liu, and thus a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the capital
injection agreement, the equity interest of Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong Dadi
will be diluted from 9.9% to 4.84% upon completion of the capital injection. As
such, the effective equity interest of the Group in Guangdong Dadi will be
increased from 90.1% to 95.16%, which shall be deemed as an acquisition of
5.06% equity interest in Guangdong Dadi from Ningbo Yishan by the Group for
a deemed consideration of RMB118,800,000 (which corresponds to 9.9% (being
the equity interest of Ningbo Yishan in Guangdong Dadi prior to the Capital
Injection) of RMB1,200,000,000) and shall constitute a connected transaction of
the Company. For details please refer to the announcement dated 24
December 2019 of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year under review, the Company and certain subsidiaries
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. As per the Listing
Rules, all such continuing connected transactions are required to be disclosed
in the annual report of the Company:

1. On 1 January 2014, Digicine Oristar Technology Development (Beijing)
Company Limited (“Oristar Technology”) entered into the Oristar
Technology Cooperation Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit, pursuant
to which Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable endeavours to sale
the Projection Equipment (or any part of it) (including installation and
training) to GD Cinema Circuit upon fulfillment of certain conditions for
coping with its business development during a fixed term of six (6) years,
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2019. Particulars of which have
been disclosed in the announcement dated 19 August 2015 issued by
the Company, all capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the
same meanings used in such announcement unless otherwise the
contexts hereinbelow specify.

Major terms: (1) Undertakings of Oristar Technology

Oristar Technology shall use its reasonable
endeavours to provide the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) (including
appropriate installation and training) for GD
Cinema Circuit within a reasonable period of
time for the purpose of coping with GD Cinema
Circuit's business development.

(2) Undertakings of GD Cinema

GD Cinema Circuit shall purchase the Projection
Equipment (or any part of it) from Oristar
Technology on the conditions that (a) the
selling price of the Projection Equipment (or
any part of it) quoted by Oristar Technology
shall not be higher than the selling price of (i)
such Projection Equipment (or any part of it) or
(i) any other compatible equipment, apparatus
or system, quoted by other suppliers obtained
by GD Cinema Circuit; and (b) the quality of the
Projection Equipment (or any part of it)
(including but not limited to functionality and
operation) and after-sales service (including but
not limited to maintenance and repair) quoted
by Oristar Technology shall not be lower and
less than those quoted by other suppliers
obtained by GD Cinema Circuit.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1.

(Continued)

On 19 August 2015, Ms. Liu Rong, a director of the Company, who is a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing
Rules, (1) acquired 80% of Dadi Century (the remaining 20% has been
owned by Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of Mr. Yu, who is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules) which
directly owns 85% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit; and (2) gained
an effective control of 15% equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through
I RKMEFTEESIKEZE (Beijing Dadi Legend Investment
Partnership) (“Dadi Legend”) which is an associate of Ms. Liu Rong. Given
the foregoing, Ms. Liu Rong has gained control in GD Cinema Circuit,
and each of Dadi Century and GD Cinema Circuit has become an
associate of Ms. Liu Rong pursuant to Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules. As
a result, the continuing transactions contemplated under the Oristar
Technology Cooperation Agreement have become continuing
connected transactions effect from 19 August 2015.

The annual cap under Rule 14A.53 shall not be applied for the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Oristar Technology
Cooperation Agreement as such transactions have already been taken
place since 1 January 2014 under the Oristar Technology Cooperation
Agreement, i.e. before such transactions become connected transactions
upon the gaining control in GD Cinema Circuit by Ms. Liu Rong on 19
August 2015.

On 30 November 2017, the Company entered into the Business
Cooperation Framework Agreement with GD Cinema Circuit for a fixed
term from 1 December 2017 to 30 November 2020, pursuant to which
GD Cinema Circuit shall supply the Group with motion pictures and
license the Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas. Upon
commencement of the term, the Dadi Cinema Cooperation Agreement
(ie. the cooperation agreement entered into between Guangdong Dadi
and GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015) and the Dadi Development
Cooperation Agreement (ie. the cooperation agreement entered into
between Dadi Development and GD Cinema Circuit on 1 January 2015)
shall be terminated and cease to take effect. As at the date of the
Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, Ms. Liu Rong, owns 80%
of Dadi Century Beijing, which directly owns 82.49% equity interest of
GD Cinema Circuit. Ms. Liu Rong also has an effective control of 12.95%
equity interest of GD Cinema Circuit through Dadi Legend, which is an
associate of Ms. Liu Rong. In addition, Mr. Yu Cheung Hoi, an associate of
Mr. Yu (an executive director of the Company), owns 20% of Dadi
Century Beijing. Given the foregoing, GD Cinema Circuit is a connected
person of the Company. Particulars of which have been disclosed in the
announcement dated 30 November 2017 issued by the Company, all
capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall have the same meanings used
in such announcement unless otherwise the contexts hereinbelow
specify.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

2.

(Continued)

The fee payable for the motion pictures procured through the GD
Cinema Circuit will either be paid as a Fixed Fee Motion Picture or a Box
Sharing Motion Picture, both of which are explained below.

(a) Fixed Fee Motion Pictures

The Group shall pay monthly, a fixed licensing fee to the GD
Cinema Circuit for licensing each Fixed Fee Motion Picture from
the GD Cinema Circuit during the motion picture projection
period and such fixed licensing fee shall be in accordance with the
same terms offered by GD Cinema Circuit to its other cinema
operators. GD Cinema Circuit shall not be entitled to sharing of the
Net Box Office of the Fixed Fee Motion Pictures.

(b) Box Sharing Motion Pictures

The Net Box Office of each Box Sharing Motion Picture shall be
distributed in the following manner:

(i) a sum equivalent to all fees payable to the distributor (from
whom GD Cinema Circuit obtained its right to permit the
Group to project such motion pictures in its cinemas) (the
"Distributor Fees”) shall be paid to the GD Cinema Circuit;

(i) the Group shall, during the term, pay an amount of not
more than 1% of the Net Box Office of the Box Sharing
Motion Picture to the GD Cinema Circuit and the exact
percentage of such payment shall be agreed upon between
the Group and the GD Cinema Circuit prior to the screening
of the motion picture; and

(i) the remaining portion of the Net Box Office shall belong to
the Group.
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Report of the Directors
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

HHEMERX S (W)

2. (Continued) 2. (&)
Pursuant to the Business Cooperation Framework Agreement, the RIBEGESEIER S - NEE L ERSE
maximum amount of payment to be made by the Group to the GD ER R AR YN 7 & e FIER T
Cinema Circuit in relation to the provision of motion pictures, less the ANER(EELRE]DFHINET -
Distributor Fees (the “Annual Caps”) are set out below:
For the eleven For the For the For the
months ended year ended yearended month ended
30 November 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017
BE20205 HZE20195F BE2018F  #HE2017F
11 A30H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
IE11{EA IHFE LFE A%
(HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HKS'000)
(F7&7T) (F#7T) (F7#7T) (F#7T)
Maximum amount REEREREZ R 92,000 80,000 50,000 4,000
payable by the Group il ks 3
to the GD Cinema EEREREITA
Circuit in relation to A
provision of motion
pictures, less the
Distributor Fees
All the independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed AN AG BB IENITE SR LIFERE

the above continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that all such
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged

its auditors to report on all continuing connected transactions as mentioned

above, and the auditors have issued to the Board a letter confirming that

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that all such

continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(3)  exceed the proposed annual caps as determined by the Company.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the law in
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

As referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 17 May 2018, Top Yield
Ventures Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Top Yield")
issued the US$120,000,000 guaranteed senior notes (“2018 Notes”) that bear
interest at 9.75% per annum due 2019, which was listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Top Yield has fully repaid the principal amount of the
outstanding 2018 Notes together with the accrued interest upon its maturity
on 23 May 2019.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
directors, the Company has maintained during the year and up to the date of
this report sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 63 to 83.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lau Yip Leung, Mr. Xiao Sui Ning and Mr. Ho
Yeung Nang. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor of the
Company and management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019, and discussed the auditing, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were audited
by BDO Limited (“BDO"). A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS

Reference is made to the joint announcements of the Company and its listed
subsidiary, Sino-i, dated 15 November 2013, 6 December 2013 and 31 July 2015
(collectively, the "Announcements”) in relation to a discloseable transaction
under which Xinnet Technology Information Company Limited (“XWHT"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino-i, by means of the Structured
Agreements, shall be entitled to control over Xinnet's management, businesses
and operations in substance in addition to recognise and receive all economic
benefits of the business of Xinnet. All capitalized terms used hereinbelow shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements unless
otherwise stated in this annual report.

The Board hereby provides updated information in relation to the business
operations of Xinnet through the Structured Agreements and the implications
thereof as follows:

(a) Particulars and business activities of Xinnet:

Xinnet is a limited liability company established in the PRC and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ZQHT. Mr. Jiang is a PRC citizen, and an ultimate
beneficial owner of 100% equity interest of ZQHT. Xinnet's main
businesses are provision of virtual server hosting and maintenance
services, provision of email services and registration of domain names in
the PRC, which are all regarded as a kind of internet content services.
Xinnet has obtained a valid licence for providing internet content
services, issued by b RTTBEE IR B (Beijing Communications
Administration).

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(1) Loan Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):
(

) Parties: XWHT as lender; and Mr. Jiang as borrower

(ii) Loan amount: RMB1,500,000

(i) The loan is interest free, and has no maturity date for
repayment. Mr. Jiang shall have no right to effect any early
repayment unless having the written consent from XWHT.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(Continued)

)

3)

4)

Equity Pledge Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

U]

(i)

(i)

Parties: XWHT as pledgee; ZQHT as pledgor; and Xinnet

Assets pledged: 80% equity interest of Xinnet, free from
encumbrance, as first fixed charge to XWHT as security.

ZQHT shall not dispose of the pledged 80% equity interest
to any other party without obtaining the written approval of
XWHT.

Management and Technology Services Agreement (dated 15
November 2013):

i

)

(i)

(iif)

Parties: XWHT; and Xinnet

XWHT shall provide certain exclusive management and
technology services to Xinnet.

The Management and Technology Services Agreement is
solely terminable by XWHT but not Xinnet. In return for the
provision of the exclusive services, XWHT shall be entitled to
receive a service fee which is equivalent to the net profit of
Xinnet as per its yearly audited financial statements.

Option Agreement (dated 15 November 2013):

0]

(if)

Parties: XWHT as grantee; ZQHT as grantor; and Xinnet

ZQHT shall grant an exclusive option to XWHT at an option
price of RMB1.00 to acquire up to 100% equity interest in
the registered capital of Xinnet (no limit on the number of
times the option may be exercised by XWHT). The total
subscription price for 100% equity interest of Xinnet shall be
equivalent to the total loan amount (being RMB1,500,000)
under the Loan Agreement, and the subscription price for
each option exercised shall be paid by direct set off on a
dollar-for-dollar basis against the outstanding loan amount
under the Loan Agreement.
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Summary of main terms of the Structured Agreement:
(Continued)

(5)  Power of Attorney (dated 15 November 2013):

(i) Parties: ZOHT; and XWHT

(i) Itis anirrevocable power of attorney under which XWHT
shall be the sole attorney of ZQHT. XWHT shall have full
power, without having to obtain ZQHT's any further consent
or approval, to exercise such rights in Xinnet as (a) all
shareholder’s rights and voting rights in accordance with
the corporate memorandum of Xinnet; and (b) rights of
nomination and appointment of legal representative,
chairman of the board, directors, general manager and
other senior management personnel of Xinnet.

The Loan Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the
Management and Technology Services Agreement, the Option
Agreement and the Power of Attorney shall be executed
simultaneously with each other.

(c) The significance of business activities of Xinnet to the
Group:
By means of the Structured Agreements, the Group may engage in the
business of virtual server hosting and maintenance in the PRC and such
business may widen the spectrum of services of the Group. The widened
services are expected to lead the Group to having not only a stronger
foothold against its competitors in the PRC but also an achievement of
efficiency and cost-effectiveness in provision of virtual server hosting and
maintenance services to the customers of the Group.

(d) The financial impact of the Structured Agreements on
the Group:

XWHT is a parent company of Xinnet as XWHT has the right to control
Xinnet by virtual of the Structured Agreements. As a result, the financial
position and operating results of Xinnet and its subsidiary shall be
consolidated in the XWHT's financial statements from the date on which
XWHT has gained control in Xinnet in accordance with the HKFRS.

During the year, Xinnet's revenue was approximately HK$113,604,000
(2018: approximately HK$136,542,000); loss before income tax was
approximately HK$31,924,000 (2018: approximately HK$26,744,000); and
total assets were approximately HK$186,209,000 (2018: approximately
HK$145,515,000) have been consolidated into the Group's financial
statement.

The loss for the year was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit of its
domain name business.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(e) The extent to which the Structured Agreements

(f)

relate to requirement of applicable laws, rules and
regulations other than the foreign ownership
restriction:

In view of the PRC legal opinion, (i) the Structured Agreements have
complied with the laws, rules and regulations in the PRC, and complied
with the respective articles of association of XWHT, ZQHT and Xinnet; (ii)
there is no law, rule or regulation specifically disallows foreign investors
from using any structured agreement to gain control of or operate the
business of Xinnet; and (iii) the Structured Agreements would not be
deemed as concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form and void
under the PRC contract law.

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks:

Xinnet's main businesses are classified as value-added telecommunication
services which is a kind of business restricted to foreign investors in the
PRC. By virtue of MNEIREBEREBIBHE (Provisions on the
Administration of Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises),
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% in the equity
interest of a PRC enterprise providing value-added telecommunication
services.

The main businesses of Xinnet are considered as value-added businesses
which widen the spectrum of services of the Group for its customers and
in turn enhance the Group's competitiveness in the PRC market. As the
Group faces the aforesaid restriction in equity interest of a PRC company,
the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as a strategic arrangement
by which the Group may fully and effectively control Xinnet, which in
turn enables the Group to achieve the aforesaid purposes. In addition,
the Structured Agreements offer flexibility to the Group in control of
Xinnet — (a) control of its management, businesses and operations; and
(b) owning of its 100% equity interest by exercising the call option under
the Option Agreement when the restriction in having more than 50%
equity interest of a PRC enterprise by foreign investors is removed or
repealed.
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Report of the Directors
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks: (Continued)

In addition to the foreign ownership restriction under the prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, the Structured Agreements do not
violate any PRC laws, rules and regulations, and the execution of the
Structured Agreements by the parties thereto does not violate any article
in the articles of association of the contracting parties; and such
prevailing provision and notice issued by the PRC authorities as (i) {4M
EIREEETEEEMRT) (Provisions on the Administration of
Foreign Investment Telecommunication Enterprises) (amended in 2008)
and (IR EEZEIEEH ) (Catalogue for Guidance of Foreign
Investment Industries) (amended in 2015) issued by the State Council of
the PRC, under which foreign investor shall not have more than 50% in a
corporation providing value-added telecommunication services; and (ii)

(AR MBI EREREIREEFEEHEENBHAM) (Notice of
Strengthened Administration of Foreign Investment in and Operation of
Value-Added Telecommunication Business) issued by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in July 2006 under
which a local PRC company holding an internet content provider licence
shall not lease, transfer or sell the licence to foreign investors in any form,
or provide any assistance to foreign investors to provide internet content
services in the PRC, but such provision and notice are not governing or
restricting the control of a PRC company through structured
agreements.

Given the foregoing, the Structured Agreements shall be regarded as
valid documents binding all parties thereto as at the date of this report.
However, if any new applicable law or regulation were enacted in the
future in the PRC, the validity and enforceability of the Structured
Agreements might have been affected, and as a result, the structured
agreements of controlling Xinnet would have been disruptive which in
turn would have affected the business of the Group.

The Ministry of Commerce of the PRC has issued certain consultation
paper (EZECKE RFR) in respect of a bill namely {/# A R HF1E
SNEIHE B VK ) (Foreign Investment Law of the PRC) (the “Bill") in January
2015, which is to be enacted into an act or statute. As per sections 15
and 18 thereof, foreign investment means foreign investors directly or
indirectly conduct certain investment activities, e.g. through structured
agreements or trust arrangement to control a PRC company or holding
equity interest of a PRC company. Any foreign investment in any
business under the catalogue of restricted investment shall apply for an
access permit from foreign investment authority under the State Council
of the PRC as per section 27 thereof. There is no indication in the Bill that
contracts under the contractual arrangement would be void.
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

Reasons for using the Structured Agreements and the
risks associated therewith including actions taken to
mitigate such risks: (Continued)

Application for an access permit cited in the Bill could be viewed as a
kind of administrative procedure rather than a prohibitive threshold,
therefore, failure in obtaining the permit by fulfilling certain
administrative procedures would not be very high. As Mr. Jiang is not a
connected person of the Group, the risk of direct conflict of interest with
the Group will be very low. It is unlikely for Mr. Jiang setting up another
entity conducting business having a direct competition with Xinnet's,
otherwise, Mr. Jiang would not execute and procure the execution of the
Structured Agreements by which Mr. Jiang has given up the businesses
of Xinnet. As at the date of this report, the Group is not aware that Mr.
Jiang has carried out or is involved in any business having a direct
competition with the businesses of the Group. If Mr. Jiang or ZQHT
breaches any obligations or undertakings under any Structured
Agreements, the operations of Xinnet would not be affected as the
position of the Group in controlling Xinnet has been fully secured by (a)
full control of the board of directors of Xinnet; and (b) obtaining a charge
of 100% equity interest in Xinnet (as per the provision of the Loan
Agreement, the pledgor has further charged the remaining 20% equity
interest in Xinnet as first fixed charge in favour of the pledgee in October
2014).

Since the Bill has yet been enacted into an act or statute, the sections or
provisions thereof might be further modified and amended after the
consultation period, it is uncertain whether there will be any additional
conditions imposed on foreign investors.

(PR EE AR B 91 % & 7K NForeign Investment Law of the PRC)
was promulgated on 15 March 2019 and was implemented on 1 January
2020. The Foreign Investment Law does not clearly stipulate the legality
or effectiveness of foreign-invested enterprises in adopting structured
agreements to control domestic companies in the PRC, nor does it
require explicit requirements on the specific form of the structured
agreements or the specific content of the structured agreements legal
documentation. Thus, after the Foreign Investment Law come into force,
its provisions shall not affect the effectiveness of the structured
agreements legal documentation. However, there are still uncertainties
in the interpretation and application of the PRC laws and regulations on
the effectiveness of the structured agreements, and the interpretation of
the relevant authorities may be different from the above. Therefore, we
cannot assure that the above structured agreement will not be adversely
affected.

The Structured Agreements might be subject to scrutiny of the tax
authorities in the PRC, and additional tax might be imposed, but the
Group does not expect that such tax risk is high and will lead to any
substantial financial impact on the Group.
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Report of the Directors
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STRUCTURED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Material change in the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been supplemented or modified since the
date of execution of all such Structured Agreements.

Unwinding of the Structured Agreements:

No Structured Agreement has been unwound since the date of
execution all such Structured Agreements. None of the Structured
Agreement is to be unwound until and unless the restriction on
ownership by foreign investors is removed or not in force. In the event of
such restriction in foreign investment is removed or not in force, XHWT
will exercise its option under the Option Agreement to acquire the entire
equity interest in Xinnet. Upon completion of formal acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Xinnet, the Structured Agreements will then be
unwound.

On behalf of the Board
Yu Pun Hoi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is committed to maintain high corporate governance standard
and unambiguous procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance its shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2019 and as of the date of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREBRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the current Board is made up of six directors
including two executive directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs"). The directors are,
collectively and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 36 to 40 under the
heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”. During
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Board
consisted of the following:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Rong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Bing Kwan
Mr. Lung King Cheong (retired with effect from 30 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and monitoring its affairs. All directors should take decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned
senior management of the Company.

The Board has the full support of its board committees and the senior
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Board members do not have any
financial, business and family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other. During the year, the Board held 23 meetings.

During the year, the chairman held a meeting with each of the non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company and
obtained independent opinions relating to affairs of the Board and the
Company without the presence of other executive directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.

The Company has entered into service contracts with its non-executive
directors (including INEDs) for a term of two years with effect from the signing
date of service contracts.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company has appointed three INEDs of whom Mr. Lau
Yip Leung is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the INEDs are independent.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lau Yip Leung has served as an INED for more than
nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of
independence based on the requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and affirmed that Mr. Lau Yip Leung remains independent; (ii) the
Nomination Committee of the Company has assessed and is satisfied of the
independence of Mr. Lau Yip Leung; and (iii) the Board considers that Mr. Lau
Yip Leung remains independent of management and free of any relationship
which could materially interfere with the exercise of his independent
judgement. Notwithstanding the length of his service, the Company believes
that his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will
continue to benefit the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in a
programme of continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible for
arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors.

From time to time, directors are provided with written materials to develop
and refresh their professional skills on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the purpose of assisting them in discharging
their duties. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training during the year.
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EXREBRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four board committees, namely Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of the Board's responsibilities.

Executive Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Executive
Committee. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this report, the Executive Committee consisted of executive directors and
senior management of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (ceased to be the chairman and member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 25 October 2019)

Ms. Liu Rong (Chairlady of the Executive Committee)

Mr. Chen Ming Fei*

Mr. Xue Bo Ying*

Ms. Yu Xin* (resigned with effect from 25 October 2019)

Ms. Zhao Lei* (resigned with effect from 25 October 2019)

Mr. Xu He Ran* (appointed with effect from 25 October 2019)

Mr. Zhang Yang* (appointed with effect from 25 October 2019)

* Senior Management

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are empowered to plan,
determine, approve, implement, handle, arrange, review and amend all
policies, operations, corporate governance functions and internal control of
the Group, ensuring that the delegation of its powers to the senior
management is clearly defined, and that a transparent reporting procedural
system is in place and effectively monitored.

During the year, the Executive Committee held 5 meetings, in particular, to
review the financial performance of the segments in the Group, review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance, make decisions on
the strategic layout of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit Committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee consisted of all INEDs as follows:

Mr. Lau Yip Leung (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xiao Sui Ning
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reports and internal control procedures as well as to
maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings, in particular, to review
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2019, and
discussed the auditing, financial control, internal control and risk management
systems.

Remuneration Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee consisted of all the INEDs as follows:

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lau Yip Leung
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described in
paragraph B.1.2(c) under the CG Code (i.e. making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive director and
senior management member). The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
establishing of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration on salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, in particular, to
review and recommend to the Board the remuneration policies and the
remuneration packages of the individual executive directors and senior
management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the emoluments paid or payable to
members of senior management were within the following band:

Emolument band
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EXREBRS

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee consisted of the directors of the Company as follows:

Mr. Yu Pun Hoi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Liu Rong

Mr. Lau Yip Leung*

Mr. Xiao Sui Ning*

Mr. Ho Yeung Nang*

* INEDs

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating nomination
policies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become directors, assessing
the independence of INEDs, and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of directors, and review the board diversity policy annually. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the Board to seek external
professional advice in the selection and recommendation for directorship,
when required, fulfilling the requirements for professional knowledge and
industry experience of any proposed candidates.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, in particular, to
review and assessment of the independence of all INEDs of the Company; to
consider and recommend to the Board for approval the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (the “2019
AGM"); to review the structure, size and composition of the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted the nomination policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the key nomination criteria and nomination procedures for the
nomination of directors of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
Key Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall identify and nominate qualified individuals
for appointment as additional directors or to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise. The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

Reputation for integrity

Accomplishment and experience in any particular industry
Professional and education background

Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

Nomination Procedures

1. Appointment of Directors
The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s) suitably qualified to
become Board members, having due regard to the Policy and the
diversity policy of the Board (“Board Diversity Policy”), and assesses the
independence of the proposed INED(s) as appropriate.

(1) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the
Board.

(2)  The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by the
Nomination Committee, having due regard to the Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

(3)  The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s) as
director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for election at
a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-
election by shareholders of the Company at the next annual
general meeting after initial appointment in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)
Nomination Procedures (Continued)

2. Re-appointment of Directors

(1) The Nomination Committee considers each retiring Director,
having due regard to the Policy and the Board Diversity Policy and
assesses the independence of each retiring INED.

(2)  The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to the
Board.

(3)  The Board considers each retiring director recommended by the
Nomination Committee having due regard to the Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy.

(4)  The Board recommends the retiring directors to stand for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws.

The Nomination Committee will undertake the review and revision of
the Policy, as and when needed.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in relation to the nomination
and appointment of new directors, which sets out the selection of board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference
to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational background,
industry experience and professional experience. Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Nomination Committee will give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.

The directors’ biographical information as at the date of this report is set out on
pages 36 to 40 under the heading “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”. The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board Diversity Policy
and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, and
recommended the Board that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board of the Company takes into account, inter alia, the Group's
earnings performance, financial position, general business conditions and
strategies, interests of the shareholders of the Company, the Group's expected
working capital requirements and future expansion plans, business cycle of the
Group's business and other external or internal factors that may have an impact
on the business, investment requirements and future prospects.

The proposed declaration of dividend is subject to the Board’s decision and the
declaration of any final dividend for any year is subject to shareholders’
approval. The declaration of dividend is also subject to Bermuda law and the
Company's Bye-laws.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee of the Company is responsible for performing the
duties on corporate governance functions set out below:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

b.  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

C. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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EXREBRS

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ CHESRRBREEHFCS
ATTENDANCE

The attendance record of each director at the Board, Board committee THRIARZESHEHZE2019F 12431 B ILF
meetings and general meetings of the Company held for the year ended 31 ERTHARFEFESSH% EFZEC@8xN
December 2019 is set out in the table below: RSB -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/EERY
Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Continuous
Board General  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Professional
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Development
BT B A R% BiE
Name of Director Bz EEgEd BRRAXE ZE8EE ZE588E ZE8883 ZEggE BXRR
Executive Directors HTES
M. Yu Pun Hoi (Note 1) TRBEE W) 13 1 1 NAMER NATER 1 /
Ms. Liu Rong ElE S n 1 5 NAMNER  NANER 1 /
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Lam Bing Kwan HRELE 14 1 NAMER NATER NVAMER NATER /
Mr. Lung King Cheong (Note 2 ERERE () 1 - NAMER NATNER NANER NATER /
Independent Non-executive BUkHTES
Directors
Mr. Lau Yip Leung AEREE 7 1 NATER 2 1 1 /
M. Xiao Sui Ning BRELE 1 - NATER 1 - - /
Mr. Ho Yeung Nang f&e ks 7 1 NATER 2 1 1 /
Number of meetings held ENBHEERY 3 1 5 2 1 1
during the year
Notes: HifsE -

m Mr. Yu Pun Hoi ceased to be the chairman and member of the executive committee of the (1 TREEETBEEARANTEZEGIERKE 8
Company with effect from 25 October 2019. 2019410 A 25 BRBAR ©

) Mr. Lung King Cheong retired as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 30~ (2 BESEREREAARIEHRITESR - A2019F5730H
May 2019. KA o
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 117 to 125.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Group in respect of audit
service and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$10,858,000 and HK$1,269,000, respectively.
The non-audit services include professional advice on transactions as well
broader business advisory and advisory service to assist the Company to
comply with laws and regulations. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the
external auditors of the Group is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jay Shree Aggarwal, who was an employee of the Company and became
the company secretary with effect from 1 July 2018, has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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EXREBRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws, the board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an SGM, and SGM shall also be convened on
requisition, as provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
"Companies Act”), or, in default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

Under Section 74 of the Companies Act, the directors of the Company,
notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene
an SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

A meeting convened under Section 74 of the Companies Act by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Subject to Section 79 of the Companies Act, it shall be the duty of the
Company on the requisition in writing of such number of shareholders
as is hereinafter specified, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

—  to give to the shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting;

—  to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition under Section 79
of the Companies Act shall be:

(@)  either any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates; or

(b)  notless than one hundred shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other shareholders of the Company by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meetings of the Company, provided
that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the resolution
shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and, so far as
practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and, where it is
not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall be served
or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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EXREBRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

3. Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong. Shareholders
may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
12/F., The Octagon, No.6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong, or to the Company by email at info@nanhaicorp.com.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the SGM/annual
general meeting.

The details of the rights of shareholders of the Company can be found in the
Company's website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to safeguard shareholders’ interests and believes
that effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group.

The Board adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders of the
Company and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the Company, in
order to enable shareholders of the Company to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow shareholders of the Company and potential
investors to engage actively with the Company.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties on a timely basis. All such publications together with
additional information of the Group are timely updated on the Company's
website at www.nanhaicorp.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company's constitutional documents during the
year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in monitoring the risk exposures and the operating effectiveness of the
underlying risk management and internal control systems.

The Company assists the management in identifying, assessing, responding,
monitoring and reporting corresponding risks through risk management and
internal control structure. The system aims at managing instead of eliminating
the risks of unfulfilled business goals that reasonably but not absolutely
prevents the impact of material risks.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company has established a sound risk management and internal control
structure, adopting a top-down organizational structure from the Board to the
specific internal control units with well-defined duties. The Group'’s Internal
Audit and Monitoring Department assists the Board and/or the Audit
Committee in the ongoing review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board, through Audit
Committee, is at least annually informed of significant risks that may impact on
the Group's performance.

The Board
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ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems in order to safeguard the shareholders' investment and assets of the Group;
formulate a management structure with specific terms of reference; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives, and formulate the Group's risk management strategies.
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oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to maintain effective risk management and internal control systems; and
consider major findings on internal control matters and make recommendations to the
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FPFRERBHS

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

The Management
(including heads of
business units,

departments
and divisions)

EHE (BEEBEL -

BRI BEE)

Internal Audit
and Monitoring

Department

W ER T BEEE 0

CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS

P TR 548 (48)

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems properly
and ensure the systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and rectification of the findings on, internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.

HEFRS BEMEERREREMAIEERG WRRZSZFEABRIT:

ETE R BRERE pEfRE AR S E R

BRSO Z BRI 2 B R BPER I R B 2 S B AR A B R B &
MEZSRRRRERRABEIE RGBT

assist the Board and the Audit Committee to carry out analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

be responsible for coordinating the risk management work and reviewing the Group's
major risk management areas and report to the Audit Committee in this regard; and

make suggestions for the improving the design and implementation of risk management
and internal control system to promote standardization of work.
MYHEFELERZESHARANEREREAMEZEZREE BB RELB R #E
TP R
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BEaEm &
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ERBERBK

During the year, the management analyzed the control environment and the
risks identified, and implemented various controls measures.

approach taken: the management conducts interviews with relevant
staff members, reviews relevant documentation of the internal control
system and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the design of the
Group’s internal control system, provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

management information systems and technologies: such systems
and technologies are employed to keep track of the inputs and outputs
of the Group's operations, such as financial data system and human
resources. They are also employed to track the audit process in the
authorization system, in which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the system.
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CONTROL APPROACH AND TOOLS (Continued)

ii.  reports and variance analysis: such reports and analysis of each
segment are conducted on a regular basis such that the performance of
each segment can be easily accessible.

iv.  audit and supervision: during the year, the Group conducts overall
deployment and management of risk management and internal control
according to the “Nan Hai Corporation Limited Internal Audit System (7
YRR A R A B A EFE 5T H E)". According to the internal audit
system, the Audit and Monitoring Department conducts auditing and
verification of the Group’s main business, finance, engineering,
information technology and other fields. In the meantime, thorough
inspection for defects in the internal system of the subsidiaries of the
Group is conducted to ensure the compliance, rationality and risk
controllability in the major business processes of the Company. By
analyzing various internal control points relating to the business
processes, we have a better picture of the current conditions of internal
control, and unearthed and rectify defects and weaknesses of the
internal control system in order to prevent the potential risks of
operation management, and improve corporate governance and cost-
effectiveness.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As an important element of quality corporate governance, the overall risk
management process is overseen by the Board through the Audit Committee.
Rather than a separate and standalone process, risk management is integrated
into the business and decision-making processes, including strategy
formulation, business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions,
internal control and day-to-day operations.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function
or process within its terms of reference. It endeavours to evaluate the level of
risk and compare it against the predetermined levels of risk acceptable to the
Company. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making decisions
regarding acceptable risks and the ways to address unacceptable risks. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss scenarios.
Incidents and other situations incurring actual or potential loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.
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EXREBRS

RISK EXPOSURES

The following illustrates the major risks of the Group. Since the last annual
review, there was no significant change in the nature and extent of risks during
the year.

Risk of China’s policies on real estate — the property development business of
the Company is operated in China. In 2019, adhering to the principle of “no
speculation of residential properties”, the PRC government implemented local
responsibility system, continued to make differentiated adjustments and
established a solid and long term mechanism to promote a stable and healthy
development of the real estate market. Compared to the previous year, the
implementation of policies was relatively stable and is not expected to induce
excessive volatility in the market. The management of the Company will
monitor closely the development of the relevant policies and industry
development trend to mitigate the risk.

Quality risk on property projects — quality of property projects not only affects
the profitability of property developers, but also exerts a considerable impact
on their corporate image and culture, and in turn their core competitiveness.
The Company established a sound project control mechanism in relation to
organizational structure, function division, recruitment and project
management by clearly defining job flows, standards and reward and
punishment system to enhance the implementation of other systems. Hence,
the quality of the projects is guaranteed and improved.

Risks associated with single revenue structure of cinemas — subject to the nature
of industry, box office receipts represent a large part of revenue structure of
cinema business, which means that the revenue of cinemas relies highly on the
films. If the performance of the overall movie market or the quality of movie
content is poor, it will aggravate the Company’s financial performance. To
mitigate such risk, cinema business adopts a strategy to manage the film
sources in a proactive and flexible manner, and also put more efforts into the
introduction of other cultural and entertainment elements into cinemas to
mitigate the risks associated with single revenue source
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RISK EXPOSURES (Continued)

Risks associated with new product development — in light of intensifying market
competition, the enterprise cloud services business continues to develop and
launch new products to the market, underpinning the key to long-term
success. However, the profitability of enterprise cloud services will be directly
affected by technological and market uncertainties. If the Company cannot
identify technical factors that lead to the failure of research and development
in the new product development process in a timely manner in the future, or if
the Company fails to precisely identify the competitive advantages of new
products to rapidly capture market share, allowing our competitors to imitate
our products and thus take our place, the profitability and competitiveness of
the enterprise cloud services business will decline, which in return will
adversely affect our business operations. In view of the above risks, the Group
will, depending on its own conditions, gain a thorough understanding of its
risk exposure, design a good risk management strategy, and make
corresponding adjustments in accordance with market changes in the strategy
implementation stage to reduce technical and market risks, thereby striving for
product innovation and business growth. The measures taken or to be taken
by the Group include: (1) making wise decisions on project selection and
termination and reasonably allocating resources in the early stages of research
and development; (2) determining decision points for project continuation/
termination, performing full project evaluation and investing resources in a
timely manner during the development process; (3) strengthening information
exchange among new product developers and promoting effective
communications and conversion of external market information and internal
information; and (4) accelerating product development and product launch
and effectively capturing market share.

Exchange risk — the Group is exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates as the
Group's revenue is denominated in Renminbi while Hong Kong dollars are the
reporting currency of the Group. The management will closely monitor the
exchange exposure in order to keep the net exposure at an acceptable level
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Internal Audit and Monitoring Department is assigned with the task to
perform regular reviews on the Group's internal control systems in respect of
operational, financial and compliance aspects and will report the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, to the management and advise on the
implementation of steps and actions required to enhance the Group's internal
controls. The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action plans are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

Apart from reviewing the systems, the Audit Committee has also reviewed and
is satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget. The Board acknowledges that the management
has been progressively implementing an adequate internal control system to
ensure the effective functioning of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas, including the following key measures, policies and
procedures:

financial reporting management:

proper controls are in place to ensure the maintenance of a
complete, accurate and timely record of accounting and
management information;

regular reports on revenue and ageing analysis of receivables and
internal financial reports giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's financial performance are prepared for
the management;

quarterly updates on internal financial statements giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in sufficient details
are provided to all Directors; and

annual audit is carried out by external auditor to ensure that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

ii. the mechanism and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information which comes to the knowledge
of any one or more officers should be promptly identified, assessed and
forwarded to the Board (if appropriate);

ii. the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the Audit Committee designated by the Board;

iv.  the Audit Committee designated by the Board to monitor, control and
regularly review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements; and
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

V. a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Group encourages reporting with real
names and implements award policy if the reported suspicion is proved
to be the case. Such arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee to ensure that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation into the matters.

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's systems for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and are not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
systems, accordingly consider the systems effective and adequate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - HLEKEIBHRS

1.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) report
prepared by the Group. The purpose of this report is to provide an
overview of the principles and sustainable development concepts and
challenges faced by the Group and its vision and commitment to
corporate social responsibility in 2019.

Reporting standards

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and in compliance with the disclosure requirements and
principles of the Guide. The Group has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions sets out in the Guide.

Reporting scope

The scope of this report includes all areas of its business over which the
Group has financial significance and operational influence, as well as
those of ESG significance to the Group and its stakeholders. This report
mainly focuses on the overall performance of the Group's core business
in respect of sustainable development and corporate social responsibility
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. To give its readers a better
understanding of the Group's environmental and social performance,
this report covers and discloses the environmental key performance
indicators of various segments of the Group, including culture and
media services, property development, enterprise cloud services, news
media business and innovative business*. Extensive stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessments have also been carried out to
determine the materiality issues included in this report.

Preparation of report

In preparing this report, we have received support from all stakeholders
of the Group and gained a better understanding of the Group’s current
development at environmental and social aspects. This report
summarizes our efforts on environmental and social aspects and helps
the Company in developing future strategies for short-term and long-
term sustainable development.

* Except for the total number of employees and the total number of employees by
gender, age group and geographical region, other indicators included in this report
do notinclude Crabtree & Evelyn.
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2. AiERRES

In the face of global challenges including inequity, climate, education, ANEFEYHSEDKE  8FTA

and environment issues, the Group attaches great importance to the RE - HERREBE - KNE&E @iﬁ %E
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals. During the year, we BAREERAENEZEE - AFE - &
have added and identified certain aspects of the Group’s business I8 R RIANE B XK EREMBRENES
development in accordance with United Nations Sustainable E A5 R B IZ (DG AR » I it
Development Goals (SDGs) and made comparisons. The Group looks THR ANEEHEE—PRENEER
forward to further integration of corporate policies and daily practice to FRETRATET  BEMAEAEENT
achieve a better and more sustainable future for all. B A ERLNER
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IRIG - HBKREIBHRS

2.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2.

(Continued)

2.1 ESGworking group

The Group has established an ESG working group to regularly
discuss the ESG work in an interactive manner, provide trainings
for all departments, establish an effective management systems
and control procedures to achieve sustainable development of

the Group and all stakeholders.

The team directly oversees the sustainable development
strategies, work plans and performance goals of the Group, and
makes recommendations with an aim to strengthen the
leadership in ESG development, manage ESG related risks in a
more effective manner and encourage all departments to

Communication level
BEE

implement our ESG policies.

Decision-making level
REE

- Establish at the board of directors of
the Company

- To formulate and take a leading role
in the Group's ESG plans and ESG
policies as well as short-term,
medium-term and long-term goals

- To approve the contents of annual
ESG report

- To delegate ESG duties to various
functions and subsidiaries of the
Group

- BRAARESRE

- HIE - SEEEEESGHREI MESGE R
kR RERZ

- B FEESGREAR

- DEEE S BAIPIF S B AR
ESGILEREE

-
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- Establish at the securities depart-
ment of the Group

- To monitor and respond to annual
materiality issues and consider ESG
related opportunities

- To prepare the Group's ESG annual
report

- To form an ESG working group
consisted of staff from various
functions and subsidiaries

- To continuously strengthen the
communications with stakeholders

- RREEESES
CERREHFEEEHEE R
ESGAARAHL B

- R EEESGEERE

- HE RS BAEPI RSB ARIA
BMHMAESGT /) 4R

- BN T AR R R

o

KERRES (W)

2.1

ESG T{E/ 4
RNEBDKIL T ESGTIE/NE - /A
BB F - EHEITESG TIERE
BBV TERNERERARERR
Frr AERAEE GRS FISHEE
FR A ERR o

ZBEKEEASEN A RERR
RS THEFTEIRRB AR - LR

& BEHEMEBERARE HEk
ERNTHNEE - RMFBHEERN
WERRE HEREARNERE
%o RESEHFRNTEERE
gRERHE

Execution level
HITIE

« Establish at all functions and
subsidiaries of the Group

- To collect internal ESG related
policies and data

« To comply with various ESG related
systems

- To enhance employees’ awareness
of sustainable development

- BREEEBAL TP RE B AR

- B Bh ik & BESGA B EBIER EE
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 2. kERRES ()

(Continued)

2.2 Communication with stakeholders 2.2 BEFZEEREE
The Group places great emphasis on the feedbacks from internal AEEB+HERAIIMNFMHENER
and external stakeholders to strengthen its ESG management. PABBMEIRIE - HE REANEE - &
Through regular communications with stakeholders, we are able I BB (& 88 - LA R PIRE
to identify sustainable development concerns from stakeholders SRR FHE R EE - OE— R
and strive for furtherance of sustainable development. BPETHBEEE ENTIE-
We have conducted an objective assessment of the Group's B AREBNAFERRRITET
sustainable development performance to understand the BB NEEESENELYELRA
stakeholders’ primary concerns and identify opportunities and ABRENRE - WHEASERERN
risks ahead. We have also engaged all stakeholders through other B MRS - HPIAEHRNEMmERE
channels on a regular basis. Regular communications with BESEROEBELE - AEEEFZ D
stakeholders are as follows: ETHSITHEEEREDE
Major stakeholders Methods of engagement
FEFZEES FEZHEAFN

Shareholders Annual general meetings, interim and annual reports, corporate communications and
S results announcements

BREFAE  PHREEFE CRBALEERS

Investors Results announcements

KREE S YN

Customers Customer satisfaction surveys, customer service centers, customer loyalty programs, visits

=P by customer relationship managers, daily operations/communications, telephone and
e-mail
EEMBEERAET EERETL  BRAEZFEHAENTESY FEPBELERS  BF
BB AN B R R

Employees Performance interviews, business briefings, seminars/workshops/lectures, employee
BT suggestion boxes, employee communication meetings

THERREHK  EBE®R PN/ TEY BE BIERM BEIAAK

i3

Suppliers Supplier management procedures, meetings, supplier evaluation systems

HIEm HEREERR - 2%  HEATEHE

Regulatory authorities Meetings, compliance reports
EE#RE G ARWME

Business partners On-site visits, meetings

EBRBH R B

Press releases, results announcements
MER - FELE

Strategic cooperation

RIS S EIR A
Community Volunteer services, community activities, seminars/lectures/workshops, donations
@ FLEE  (HEES) - TS EETED - BRE
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT
(Continued)

2.3 Materiality analysis and matrix

We have invited different stakeholders to give their comments via
our online surveys. Materiality issues refer to those that are most
relevant to and have a significant impact on the Group and its
stakeholders, and which stakeholders expect us to better manage
and disclose. In 2019, we conducted a materiality assessment to
draw a materiality matrix for reviewing the Group’s materiality
issues. After such review, the Group identified 21 materiality issues.
The overall materiality of the issues mapped on the top right-hand
corner of the materiality matrix below is determined based on the
total score given to each issue by internal and external
stakeholders.

Making a materiality ESG issue list
5 EEESGH B

N~

Selection of less than 10 issues

2.

KERRES (W)

23 EEMFGRIEM

BRI W LS - WEFETRH
@A REER - ERFHERENE
KERBEOERERITHEEEAY
2 FAREFNEHERMLEERE
RAEH R BERERE o 20195 » #AI
HEITT - REREE  AREEN
Bl R REMERZE - £F
Bi& - SEXBR T2 ESEHSE
TEMRERNEREL LANERE
BHRABRBRINAFNERTER
BENASETEREEN -

34 materiality issues are listed with reference

to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the Guide
2E2IMEEFHEL (GRI) F

CH#EB1) FIHT 34 AEEZE

via online surveys -+ Lessthan 10 issues that are considered to be
e R AR 0ES A T RS E materials from the stakeholders' perspective are selected

::R

"

Survey results

- FIESABES IR AE A EE 10 Esk
= UTHREEEZERN

HELER - A materiality matrix is obtained based on these data

:@ - BEEEBAEREZTER
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

(Continued)

2.3 Materiality analysis and matrix (Continued)

Materiality to Stakeholders
B =BETHEEZE

2.

IRIG - HBKREIBHRS

KERRES (W)

23 BEEMAMRERE(E)

Materiality matrix of ESG issues

ESGEREEEM D #TER

°
A
°
]
u
¢
X
° *
A®

Business performance

KBRS

Market competitiveness

WEHE N

° Compliance with laws and regulations
BPERER

® Employment rights
EEER

Labour relations

A wozmmm

. Occupational health and safety
i ey

- Environmental awareness of employees
BTHRREH

Materiality to Nan Hai
HEHESHE

Health and safety of products/services

¢ ER BENEREREZE

Employee diversity, non-discrimination
* and equa_l opportunm\es
B8IZtl  TEBERTSHS

A Quiality control
B2

Technology development and applications

B iR R R

Care for community

® wEdE

Energy consumption and efficiency

® LR

Promotion and product labels

X s@pEapsEs

Customer privacy protection

X 2SR BEE

Mechanisms for handling complaints
A\ and replies

BRYBHR A0 S O I

Protection of intellectual property

O (rigsmEit

Qualifications and professional conduct

U apRazmsy

- Climate change
IR

A \Commqnity investment and participation
HEREMSE

Supplier management

® prEnER
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3. PRAGMATIC OPERATION

The Group principally engages in culture and e

media services, property development, enterprise 20 4 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
/p p y p ' p EQ)}EmﬂlII|FIU\STI{IJ[}TIJR[

cloud services, news media and innovative
business. The Group is committed to operate its
business in compliance with laws and regulations,
act with probity, transparency and accountability,
implement appropriate risk management and
internal control systems and effective customer service systems, protect
intellectual property, improve supply chain management and ensure
high standards of business ethics, thereby achieving better business
performance and enhancing its market competitiveness.

Development awards in 2019:

Cui Lu Technology won the Gold Award for Overseas Projects
from LIAS Awards in Singapore with the stereoscopic greening
project of Guangzhou Free Man Garden

CE Dongli won the “2018-2019 First Place in Market Share in the
Website Construction Market in China” from ccidnet.com

HKO1 won the various news awards, including four US “Telly
Awards”, “Awards for Editorial Excellence by The Society of
Publishers in Asia”, four “The Spark Awards, two “MARKies Awards”
and two “Mob-Ex Awards”

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / &' ERAT)
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3. PRAGMATIC OPERATION (Continued) 3. BEEE(H)

EiER R Property development

Cui Lu Technology won the Gold Award for Overseas Projects from LIAS Awards in Singapore with the stereoscopic greening
project of Guangzhou Free Man Garden

REREUREMN B B ATEE L BAR L TIZERIERT AN LIAS Awards B5MNE B £ 22

FEEEER News media business

HKO1 won various international awards from “Telly Awards” HKO1 won the “MARKies Awards”
BB 01 SLER R I8 [Telly Awards | #) % IH %18 01 487 [MARKies Awards | %18
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3.

PRAGMATIC OPERATION (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Compliance and governance

Adhering to the policy of “integrity and diligence”, the Group
strictly complies with all relevant laws and regulations including
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF 2 A R
Gl A @] %), the Listing Rules and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China Against Unfair Competition (FF #E A R 2 #l
R ANIE & %t 55%) and adopts a zero tolerance attitude towards
extortion, bribery, fraud, blackmail and money laundering. During
the year, there was no corruption litigation case against the Group
or its employees.

To maintain good corporate governance practices of the Group,
rules that need to be strictly followed, attitude towards non-
compliance and relevant management mechanisms are
included in the Staff Manual (8 T3 ) of the Company and its
subsidiaries to prevent the Group from being involved in any
cases related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
We have set up a customized whistle-blowing mechanism to
identify any misconduct within the Group and take rectification
actions in a timely manner. Data disclosure will be handled in a
confidential and prudent manner. Without the consent of the
relevant employees, the Group will not disclose the identity of the
whistle-blowers.

Customer orientation

Diversified development is one of the remarkable achievements of
the Group. Aiming at its target customers, each segment provides
its customers with quality products and services, gains better
understanding of customers’ preferences and requirements, and
takes effective measures to protect customer information and
privacy. We are able to handle complaints in a timely and effective
manner to improve customer satisfaction. The Group will keep a
detailed record for each complaint and arrive at the best possible
approach internally before responding to the customer
complaints. During the year, the number of complaints received
by the Group was 4,405, of which 4,401 cases have been
addressed. The percentage of customer complaints addressed
during the year was 99.9%. In the coming year, we are devoted to
reduce and avoid similar complaints and gradually improve our
service quality.
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3. PRAGMATIC OPERATION (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Customer orientation (Continued)

As for culture and media services segment, we provide customer
services via WeChat, APP and call center. By fully upgrading our
call center and listening to customer feedbacks in all aspects, we
strive for offering excellent customer services.

As for property development segment, upholding our philosophy
of “providing customer-oriented and attentive services” and our
property services standards to provide 24-hour housekeeping
services, we continue to strive for excellence in professional
capabilities, communication services and teamwork.

As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli launched an
"accountability system (& &8 & £ /)" to provide appropriate
services or guidance according to established procedures and
consistently maintain a high service quality by its professional
customer services team.

As for news media business segment, in addition to providing
daily information to its readers, HKO1 has attained outstanding
achievements on mobile platform in 2019, which include
improving the practical lifestyle information functions and offering
convenience for its users.

As for product quality and safety, we have established a quality
management system to ensure product quality as our top priority.
As always, there was no product recall due to safety or health
problems during the year.

Information security

Customer privacy is not only important to our customers, but also
to the Group. We strictly abide by all relevant laws and regulations
including the Computer Information System Security Protection
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China (AP 2 A R Al
STEREERREL2REED]) and the Measures for Security
Protection Administration of the International Networking of
Computer Information Networks (51 & 22 48 4% BIPR B B 22 2 1R
FEEIEIPEE). We have contingency plans against different types
and extent of potential or possible emergencies in place.

3. BREEMH)

3.2
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3. PRAGMATIC OPERATION (Continued) 3. BEEE(E)

3.4 Procurement management 34 REBEE

We are committed to work with our suppliers to build a better
environment and society. The Group strictly complies with the
Law of the People's Republic of China on Bid Invitation and
Bidding (1 #E A R # 1 B 48 1Z 4% 1% J%), the Implementing
Regulations on the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Bid
Invitation and Bidding (/1 2 A R H F1 B R 12 1812 & e 15 B1)
and the local laws and regulations in which the Group operates.
To strengthen the procurement management, avoid malpractices
in the procurement process and strengthen its anti-corruption
work, each segment will conduct data review on its suppliers to
monitor their performance and service quality.

As for culture and media services segment, our major suppliers
include projector and screen providers. Our cinemas formulated
relevant procurement systems, such as the Procurement
Management System (EREE B I2 #/Z), to improve the quality of
the supplies and ensure a fair and equal procurement. Such
standards also regulate the procurement process, procurement
organization structure, supplier selection and other procurement
details. Based on the scale and procurement requirements of each
project, cinemas may select their suppliers by means of public
tendering, invitation to tender, negotiation and price quotation.
Oristar developed the Supplier Management Handbook (£ & 7%
EIEF ) and the List of Qualified Suppliers (& & FEFE & £%),
to strengthen the supervision of suppliers’ service processes, i.e.
daily supervision and regular evaluation.

As for property development segment, our major suppliers
include construction and installation, planning and consultation,
inspection and design services providers. Nan Hai Development
has formulated our own supplier management policies and
supplier assessment procedures to ensure the quality of projects.
We also required our suppliers to sign honesty and integrity
agreements to prevent fraud during the procurement process.
Employees involved in the procurement process, which are
required to be honest and self-disciplined, are subject to
supervision by the management and relevant departments.
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3. PRAGMATIC OPERATION (Continued)

3.4 Procurement management (Continued)

3.5

As for enterprise cloud services segment, our suppliers include
server, network equipment, accessory and domain name
providers. CE Dongli developed the Procurement Management
System (FRE&E I Il £ ), which clearly defines the procurement
responsibilities, regulates procurement process, ensure the
procurement quality as well as improve procurement efficiency
and economic efficiency.

Intellectual property

Abiding by the relevant intellectual property laws and regulations
such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFZE A
R 1 B = ) J%) and the Advertisement Law of the People’s
Republic of China (Ff #E A R £ F1 B & % %), the Group is
committed to safeguard its intellectual property rights and patents
and internally approve its publicity materials, so as to provide
complete, true and accurate product information to the public
without making any misstatements or exaggerated information to
deceive its consumers. During the year, the Group possesses
registered patent for 42 products.

As for culture and media services segment, the Regulations on the
Management of Non-litigation Affairs of the Legal Department (%
T &0 IF 5F FA = 1§ B I R T), which was formulated by the
Group's cinemas, regulated the registration of trademarks, domain
names, general-purpose websites and patent applications.

As for property development segment, Cui Lu Technology had the
"Research and Development Project Approval and Management
System” and the “Research and Development Confidentiality
Management System” in place to protect its legitimate rights and
interests from infringement.

As for enterprise cloud services segment, CE Dongli formulated
the Intellectual Property Management System (&M 5 2= 12 & 312
[€), which regulated the registration of patents, copyrights,
trademarks and domain names, and protected its intellectual
property through various measures. CE Dongli also had a reward
system in place.

3. HEEEM)
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4. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Global climate change is a global topic of TRRATALE
continuous concern. To meet emission reduction 1

targets, global greenhouse gas emissions should
reduce to zero by 2055. As part of this effort, the

Group pays attention and attaches great importance ﬁ E
to the best practices of sustainable development.
We are devoted to become a leading enterprise in Jp—
terms of sustainable development performance by CLIMATE ACTION
formulating and adopting our core management
policies. We also places great emphasis on achieving @
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goal

11 “Sustainable Cities and Communities” and Goal
13 “Climate Action”.

SUSTAINABLE CITIES
AND COMMUNITIES

The Group strictly adheres to relevant environmental laws and
regulations, manages its sustainable development issues, enhances its
employees’ environmental awareness and reduces emissions, makes
good use of resources and adopts waste management and
environmental protection measures. During the year, there was no non-
compliance of any relevant environmental laws and regulations such as
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (H
= AR LMBEIIRERE%E) and the Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF & A R 2L FELS 22 B5565%).
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4. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

4.1.

4.2.

Carbon emission management

In response to the climate change strategies proposed under the
2019 Annual Report on Climate Change Policies and Actions in
China (7 Bl FE #1 SRR B L BV BUR BRTT B 2019 F R 5 )", we
work together to address climate change. By collecting and filing
complete environmental protection data through this reporting
platform, the Group is well-prepared for data source tracking and
setting its future indicators and targets. At the same time, we also
enhanced the disclosure of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
and ongoing emission reduction measures during the year.

Based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocol developed by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development and ISO14064-1 set by the International
Organization for Standardization, the greenhouse gas emissions of
the Group during the year were 134,298.15 tonnes of CO.e.*

Air pollutants

Vehicle emissions is one of the major air emissions standards of
China. According to the information on fuel consumption of and
kilometer operated by Group’s vehicles during the year, we will
arrange vehicle maintenance on a regular basis. During the year,
the nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides and particulate emissions were
83.57 kg, 2.28 kg and 6.93 kg, respectively.

For sustainable development data, please refer to Appendix I.

4. BIREEGE)

4.1.

4.2.
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4. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) 4. RIFFEE ()
4.3. Energy consumption 4.3. ERKEE
During the year, the Group's total electricity consumption and ANEE  AEFEEEZBETHOEFR
steam consumption for its operations were 200,894,326.21 kWh BE N TEA200894,32621 T EKF
and 2,880.81 tonnes. In the coming year, we will continue to FN2,880.81 M o 2REF + PG M AE B
monitor the electricity consumption of our business operations. EEEEKEZHNREER -
To reduce greenhouse gas emissions, we have taken the following BB RERBHNE - HPIEREUA
specific measures to encourage effective energy management. TETEERTEIE - BEABEERERE

Lighting systems
IREFR G

Use glass partitions to deploy natural light at the Group's headquarters
SEQEABEMEHERR - TAOMBAAK

Adopt lighting colour management systems at the Group's cinemas
REBFREARACHEIR R

Turn off the lights when the office areas are not in use
MMERPLER - BUHEIRER

Install independent switches to avoid turning on unnecessary lightings
BB BERBTLENRBRE

Replace with and give priority to energy-saving lightings
IMHREHREE - SELERZEOEE

Clean all lightings on a regular basis to maintain and improve efficiency

ERBERER - REFRIEARE

Electronic devices and appliances Air-conditioning systems
Set idle computers to enter auto standby/sleep mode . Clean the filters to maintain the efficiency of air-
BTEMEEREAGBAR TERELRS conditioning systems
Turn off electronic devices completely during non-working hours . BRBEA  REBTHARGR M
RIETIERRILE FRETEME . Turn off the air conditioners when the office
Purchase electronic devices such as printers with energy areas are not in use
efficiency labels . AME A E AR 22
BB AERRIGIETHE TRE (WITEH)

Case in respect of energy conservation — Lighting colour management systems adopted at the Group’s cinemas

BRI ZE —AEEXRRARACHERRR

With the lighting colour management systems at its cinemas in
place, the Group standardized the on-off control of lighting
equipment in the daily operations to maintain the atmosphere
and reasonably control all lightings of the cinemas.
AEBRBETEREIRAGHERRS  HBTRERT
2B HIIRARER B AV B BRI I - RIS B SN & FR 12 ) R
FAHE -

Lightings at its cinemas including paving lightings, business lightings, night lightings and special lightings, which
can be adjusted according to different needs, had significant energy-saving effects.

Tl RARZ TN RNFE 2 ARERA - EXRA - RRRANSHIRAEAR - EARZNEENE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

4.4. Water resource management

During the year, the Group’s total water consumption and water
consumption intensity for its operations were 1,400,648.15 tonnes.
During the year, the reclaimed water consumption was 34,098

tonnes.

In order to save water, we have taken the following specific

measures:

Turn off water taps
Fix dripping taps immediately

Take meter readings regularly and check for hidden leaks

Use reclaimed water

4.5. Waste management

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (Ff 2 A R £ F1 B 3% 1%
f& # %) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
(FpaE AR RN BY [E 88 B2 )5 R IR 3R 5 A 0%) and disposes its
wastes and emissions properly according to the laws and
regulations. The Group also strictly separates the domestic wastes
and office wastes for further handling by recognized municipal
companies. During the year, the Group’s non-hazardous waste
generated and recycled were 3,951,163.2 kg and 209,089 kg. The
Group's hazardous waste generated was 8,087.06 kg and other
hazardous waste generated was approximately 7,081 pieces. We
will continue to monitor the non-hazardous waste and hazardous
waste generated by the Group in the future to further improve our

waste management measures.

4. IRIR
4.4,

4.5.
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4.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

4.5. Waste management (Continued)

The Group made full use of innovative technologies and replaced
part of its traditional paper-based office administrative system
with electronic office system. We encourage our employees to use
electronic communication technologies such as corporate
WeChat and e-mail as much as possible to achieve paperless
communication and paperless circulation.

Paper saving

B A PR

4. BIREEGE)

45 BEYEE (E)
AEERSERAITEE - UETH
ARGRBED EHAR BT A
ETHES - RIMEEE TRALEF
S TR EME  TFH
MEEEES  NERERCEAR
B

Waste management

BEYER

Re-use paper or print documents on both sides

B AT XXM

Set double-sided printing and toner saving as default
printer preferences

FTENHBAR R M ITE R A 2 E

Post paper-saving signs at the prominent places to remind
our employees to copy documents on both sides or re-use
paper

ERERUET REEIHACEVHNERABRA
Adopt electronic office system to replace paper-based office
administrative system of the Group
FEBEEREFRREZRMRALRTDHE S ENMA
TR

Place recycling bins next to the printers to collect waste
paper for further processing

PATENEE M ERIAE - St —WEBERRBIEE—F

B i

Use waste paper for note-taking

ERBEMRRE

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS

Adopt automatic domestic waste and food
waste collection systems

R AR B K BT e B 3K B B F AT
Re-use envelopes, binders, file cards and
other stationery

ERNARGEH BEK  EBRRIEMX
EAm

Re-use penholders with pen refills to avoid
abandoning the entire pen
EREBRETAEENAET  BEER
BXE

Collect used batteries with a special recycling
bin

14 REZE B BTN T &) B AE A

Reduce the use of disposable and non-
recyclable products

AR B — IR R AN AT B B E

Assess material usage and avoid overstocking

AR RE  BRFEEB%
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4, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) 4, IREFRE(\)
4.5. Waste management (Continued) 4.5. BERYEE (&)

Case — Automatic waste collection systems adopted by “The Peninsula”

PSP E—¥BHACEALRADRERR

As for property development segment, “The Peninsula” introduced (I) automatic domestic waste collection system
and (I) automatic food waste collection system.

FEEMERERE  FEMAIA ) EERRBBWERGR () Feraf 8 BB ERL -

Automatic domestic waste collection system

EENIR EBBRERS

All waste disposed by our residents will be temporarily stored in the collection bins with sensors to detect whether the
bins are full or not. Once detected, the central control system will automatically turn on the ventilating fans in the
collection station to generate negative pressure air flow for sending the waste to the central collection station, waste
separator and then compactor via pipelines. After dust removal and deodorization, the air flow will be discharged to
atmosphere. Compacted waste will be stored in sealed waste containers and finally sent to landfill or incineration plants.
Such waste collection process will solve certain difficult problems including manpower, resources and spaces.
BERGRERE - SRS EEEREREAER - B OB RERSRERNEE - P RIEH R
FREPUWEIEAN A - ETEENA BRI A IREEE ZREA T P R R - BARNIR D BEES
NMEEHE  KBRE  RREBZRARSESZARIN - MEFRIREEGEARHNNIREREA  RIEEE
SARIEIEIS SR E R o R E S FURBIF ZEREA T ~ MAMERZER ST HE

Automatic food waste collection system

BRI B B ER G

Food waste will be automatically sent through sealed and leak-proof vacuum pipelines by way of vacuum
conveying from kitchens to containers for further collection and processing. Such food waste collection process will
solve certain difficult problems including manpower and transportation.

MAEZHXARNF N - BBATEEMREERINENEZEEEHERN IR EHE o BERAIR B EE
RBIREN  BISEETBENR - BRETERET B FRIREA TREIBFER D EE -

4.6. Sustainable construction environment 4.6. THENEERIR

As for property development segment, Nan Hai Development will EFEMERZEAE - EEERTEHE
continue to use natural lighting, optimize material-saving design, TERRET RS RIS ER A B AEROK - 6
focus on structural insulation and thermal insulation, improve MEFTEE - SRR - FBEY - 1RARR
lightings and drainage systems and adopt innovative technologies B I e K R K R BIFT R A AT B
during the design and construction stages, so as to create a M BITESRER B RN RIR
community that uses resources efficiently and enhance its climate % RABAENAREENRIEES
resilience in the future. Nan Hai Development actively shares our 7 FBEREERGSEEELR R
green building experiences with industry peers to promote green FITREIRDE - AHETHRIE
development. & -

)
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4. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) 4, IRIFFRE(E)
4.6. Sustainable construction environment 4.6. TISEMNERERIE(E)
(Continued)

Case — A low-carbon and energy conservation community created by “Free Man Garden”,

our green building project

PP E—REREEE [BOAARE] TEERDEEFEREHE

Aiming at designing and building energy-efficient and environmentally friendly properties, Nan Hai Development is
committed to meet the national green building standards and reduce the impacts on the environment.
HMBERARGNZERHERUAMBRERENDERER  BREMNBETERRERERERLEENR -
WA IRIFEK IR -

Phases 5 and 6 of “Free Man Garden” have also obtained the “one-star” green building design logo certificate in 2019.
Taking into consideration of construction scale in the design and construction processes, coupled with smart lighting
control systems, drainage design and garden landscape, Nan Hai Development strives for creating a livable and
comfortable living environment for our residents, meeting their daily and leisure needs and reducing the use of
resources.

2019 BRAAEELAHEES 2| RERERNERIE - BERRNEERF TH - BIRE - 25
REIEHI RS - KR REMNRBE ZHNZEREFITERRE REMNEEELERE  REREFEEM
RREFR - WD ERER -

Based on a comprehensive people-oriented plan, we are determined to achieve a green vision by making a good use
of sunlight and green spaces to create a public garden. The buildings are also equipped with thermal insulation
materials to reduce the indoor noise level. Lightings with infrared sensors are used on residential floors to
automatically control the lights for energy saving purposes. We will continue to optimize the energy performance of
our buildings and control the lightings with the controllers and receivers, so as to adhere to the concept of low-
carbon and environmental protection. Garden landscape, public green space connectivity and environmental quality
are the key factors for creating a high-quality and environmental friendly community.
BERGEHSREAARTNGAEERE - Hd - BARAKEERMERE - TE T — AR H(CEMN - 2
EYERBRBMEETRE  REZAREBRR - TEEERALINZEEE - BE)XERBES - EZ25
BEEH - MM PETE(CEEYMLIRRE - BB R BERIFZESSmE Y - BREFRRNIESR - SRR
NEERY  REEESZEREAN  AIREEREHBNERRAR

Cui Lu Technology won the Gold Award for Overseas Projects from LIAS Awards in Singapore with the stereoscopic
greening project of Guangzhou Free Man Garden in 2019. Based on a number of assessment criteria such as design
uniqueness, construction quality, selection of sustainable plant, the project has been highly appreciated and
recognized by the judging panel of an authority in Singapore. In addition to affirming the professionalism and hard
work of the relevant staff of the Group, such award also shows support to uphold the development concept of
professionalism, innovation, collaboration and win-win.

BETIBURFEREIMN B A ATEE S 88AR (L TIZTE 2019 F RIS ETINK LIAS Awards /BHNE B £ 82 - ENREERIE

BLmE  EYERNAHETSLETERE  JMNERARBITIEZE N EEEMAA « EH/RE
BERUASESERRSEUASNEENENTABTE - ENHEHNKR - TAEE 8137 HIF - HED
BRIED -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) 4, IRIFFRE(E)
4.6. Sustainable construction environment 4.6. TISEMNERERIE(E)
(Continued)

Case — A low-carbon and energy conservation community created by “Free Man Garden”,
our green building project

RANE—REEFRE [BHATRE] TEERTEBEREHE

Phases 5 and 6 of “Free Man Garden”
BB ATERANH

By using white as the main colour of the building facade, heat Smart lighting control system is installed
absorption will be reduced at the underground car park
BEINHEEERBE, BORERK T BB IR A S e R BRI ] R 4R
4.7. Addressing climate change 4.7. BRI
In 2019, we continue to strengthen and identify existing 20194F - B PIAERE hNok R RIERITHY
environmental protection measures to reduce emissions and IRIRIEENE - LUR A BER R & A &R K
make good use of resources to address the risks posed by climate FESRIRE(LTE R R -
change.
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5. EMPLOYEE-ORIENTED

We value the relationships with our employees and pay attention to
human rights, their working environment and opportunities for
employee growth and development. We are committed to foster an
ideal working environment by implementing various policies and
measures and listen to employees’ feedbacks to go beyond legal
requirements.

5.1. Employment rights

To achieve the United Nations Sustainable Development Goal 8
"Decent Work and Economic Growth” and Goal 10 “Reduced
Inequalities”, the Group complies with the national laws and
regulations, such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (R 2 A R FE B4 &)%), the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (R #E AR R EL B & F)%), the
Law on Protection of Minors of the People’s Republic of China (7
G AfRFEE) and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour
of the People’s Republic of China (£ |F # B & T i &) to
safeguard the basic rights of our employees. The Group also
strictly prohibits the use of forced or child labour in its business
operations. To avoid child labour, the Group will conduct identity
verification during the recruitment process. During the reporting
period, no child or forced labour was discovered within the Group.

BEIENLHE ROFEE
486 £= DECENT WORK AND REDUCED
ECONOMIC GROWTH INEQUALITIES

fl/" (=)

v

The Company and its subsidiaries formulated its Staff Manual (&
T M) for all employees, which stipulated the basic requirements
on recruitment, compensation, welfare, performance-based
payment, staff development and training and health and safety, so
as to establish a fair system for our employees and offer them
opportunities for professional development.

As an employer that promotes equal opportunities, the Group is
committed to provide an inclusive, safe, diverse and anti-
discriminatory working environment for its employees with
different backgrounds. We attach great importance to equal
opportunities. Recruitment, compensation and promotion
decisions are made based on the experience, skills and
performance of our employees, regardless of age, gender, religion,
race, skin colour, nationality, disability, sexual orientation, family,
marital status or other legally protected status.

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS

5.

BEI&%F

RMEREBTHIE - BITAR M
MIEES  BIRERREOME - B
B O 18 B 58 SR 9 1 28 TR AR A T4
B WRBETINRAEE EHEY
EEMER o

5.1. EEER

AETENERBMAEAFERRAEZ
8 10 —[EEI/EMEEEER].
[RATEE] 2EME AEETG
BP(REARLMBEILEE) - (F
EARLFMELEERE)  CREKE
ANREFV IR IFERETIHRE)E
B R AEEN  RES THEARRE
i AEEBREMBERLET R
MBS T ET  WHEBEERE
B ORBEERFILEAETL - N
HwERN - AEEIL B A TR
BET kg H| 4 THERERE -

ARBREHEARREZEETHE
(EIFM)  JIRRMEBERE - HEb)
B BIRAN  @&MEE BIHRK
BY - RERLTEENREERTE
N B TRERATFHGIE T RAS
BARS LT EEEROKS -

ERIBETFSHENET  AEER
ERRETABSSOE TRE—EHL
B 2R ZICMRBRE TR
B BMREERFERE - B
FMAMETARERBEEINK
B EEARBAME - BTEFUEK
Rl = Bk EE - BEE 5
fEARS ~ HEERE » FREE -~ SEIAROR B
HibZERREN R R A PTimE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

5. EMPLOYEE-ORIENTED (Continued)
5.1. Employment rights (Continued)

In order to listen to our employees’ opinions and suggestions, the
Group had established certain compliant and communication
channels and a suggestion box for its employees and organized
employee communication meetings and work performance
interviews.

The workforce of the Group during the reporting period (as of 31
December 2019) is as follows:

IRIG - HBKREIBHRS

RI&BXE(4E)
5.1. EERERI (&)

REBEY T HEE T RFEERE
B RVBIERM BIEBKRS
M TERBEEH  RMEREEET
ERMEE -

T ER®EBAEZ2019F12 8
TR AEBEENBR

Total workforce EELH | 2019

Total workforce EEHE
Employees engaged ERANES

(by gender) (RMERIE D)
Total number of female employees M E BB
Total number of male employees St ES B
Employees engaged ERANES

(by employment type) (BB ERE D)
Supervisory level and below FERRATEL
Management level BIBRET
Director level and above MERRIALEET
Employees engaged ERANES

(by age group) (REwRARE D)
35 or below 35ERA T
35-45 35-45 5%
Over 45 45BRA |
Employees engaged ERANES

(by geographical region) (R EE5)
Mainland China A B A
Overseas, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan BINRABRE

person  AEX 18,789
person  AEX 9,560
person  AEX 9,229
person  AEX 16,467
person  AEX 1,854
person  AEX 468
person A 15,056
person  AEX 2439
person  AEX 1,294
person  AEX 17,781
person  AEX 1,008
Annual Report 2019 / “E—NFEFR
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5. EMPLOYEE-ORIENTED (Continued) 5.
5.2. People-oriented

RIBXE (&)
52. LAAXK

With a well-established compensation system, the Group aims at
improving its market competitiveness and attracting talents. We
are committed to build a reliable and enthusiastic team, provide
competitive compensations and benefits, and establish a
harmonious working environment by organizing various activities
for its employees. To protect the financial interests and physical
and mental health of our employees, we provide various benefits
and subsidies. We also organize a variety of caring activities,
distribute traditional festive gifts and hold birthday parties for our
employees to achieve work-life balance.

In order to further improve employee morale, the Company and
its subsidiaries have formulated a “performance-based
management system” and encouraged our employees to achieve
their full potentials according to the Group's business objectives
and corporate strategic direction. The performance-based
evaluation results will serve as an important basis for salary
adjustments, bonus distribution, staff deployment and trainings.

5.3. Nurturing talents

The Group places great emphasis on talent training. We have
designed training programs based on our business needs to
provide diversified internal and external training courses to our
staff for mastering the latest knowledge and skills.

The Group provides trainings to our employees, including
induction trainings for new employees, technical trainings,
professional trainings and management trainings. The subsidiaries
under each business segment also organize different outdoor
development activities to enhance team cohesiveness and
cooperation.

Induction training seminar

1PN
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5. EMPLOYEE-ORIENTED (Continued) 5. BITHF(#8)
5.4. Health and safety 54. RERZZE

We place great emphasis on employees’ health and safety and comply
with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety (2%
A %) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases (¥t 2 % [ 872 ). In addition to
developing various health and safety measures for our workplace, we
also offer medical insurance and arrange health checkups for our
employees every year. There were no work-related fatalities within the
Group. The number of lost days due to work injury was 529 days.

As for culture and media services segment, each cinema holds a
scheduled firefighting conference every month, organizes fire drills
every year and conducts regular checks on its firefighting equipment.
As for property development segment, our Staff Manual stipulates that
all employees must observe the labour disciplines during their work,
implement safety production systems and follow operation
regulations, and properly wear and use personal protective
equipment.

In addition, we also pay attention to the physical and mental
health of employees. The Group organizes spring trips, outreach
trainings, annual dinners and special festive events on a regular
basis to encourage healthy work-life balance for employees.

T e
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Spring trip
=33

B EEEREINRENLSE B
SR BHEER) RCBRERDAE)
EREER - TIESMEI B S ERE
Rz2E B A8 TIRHEERR
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Outreach training

SERFR R I 4R
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5. EMPLOYEE-ORIENTED (Continued) 5. BEITHF(48)
5.4. Health and safety (Continued) 54. BRERZ (&)

Nan Hai Development held the 6th Nan Hai Cup Group Badminton Game and Free and Fun Game

ESRRENREAE SR NEREREE A EDE

In November 2019, we have held the 6th Nan Hai Cup Group Badminton Game and Free and Fun Game. Five sporting
events, including group badminton game, basketball demonstration match, table tennis demonstration match, swimming
competition, and group Free and Fun Game, were held. The team from &35 /2 &) with most championships won the
title of “Grand Slam” on that day. This event not only strengthens the willpower and perseverance of our staff, but also
promotes the spirit of positivity and health, and thus further enhances team cohesiveness and cooperation.

2019 11 Afh - BRMBPENE [BENR ] PEREREE [Ah&] EFg  MEAHEEPHELEBE - B
HEPERERE EHRERE EERREE FAEE [BA&] EHSEEE - EMNATATDMEREX
PETRZZHEFNEE  S2EENTARE] | BB MERMCTEIBENEEIMR N MERETR
FFRAEIR IR NIER M FEV RO RE - BIE5R T BB E R AL )
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY 6. EIfRite

To create common value for the community, the Group is committed to REBEYNEBSEMEEE KRB - &
participate in community activities and donations through influential SHERAAETENNHRBE LHBIEES -
community projects and collaboration platforms. In 2019, we have Rt R AIEHREE - £2019F - HME
successfully expanded our network of community partners in three NmEls B EERUEBFE=KE
major areas, namely charitable film-watching, art and culture and A Th At B H A - AR R
community betterment, to show our care for the society. During the BB o FMI AN 4 [ 48 BN 49 3,405,000 78 It
year, we donated approximately HK$3,405,000 and attracted 675 FEATSARZEE BN [EBTE]
participants to join the “/& B & £l" organized by Nan Hai, upholding RERERED RS2 LNEHER] o

our mission of “Change the world with wisdom and heart”.

Case — “ 8 B 51 81" organized by Nan Hai

Rfla=E—mRNEREE

Since its inception, Nan Hai set its mission as “Change the world with wisdom and heart”. By developing “/& B 5+ & " as its
platform, Nan Hai participates in public welfare activities with its wisdom and technology, so as to motivate more volunteers
and create greater value.

FBERY 2 ISHE [ BB RN B R (ERRm c RMITEDEEAE T A - LEEE BN ARER -
MEEOERAIEEANEME-

()  Children’s art charity sales

(=) EBREEDH
On 27 August 2019, Nan Hai, together with ALFHHEFE XL ARFSH L, held “ E FEZE A ABMEXRFE ", a children’s art
charity sales, at Sino-i Campus. We invited 6 blind children and 36 children of Nan Hai employees to display and
auction their paintings.
201968 B 27 B - BB BRANMERUERBTOSEEBBHERN T [EFENERE] ZEEHES - &
MBET R EEM3EMEE T FRIMEECHEERT A5 -

Aiming at providing more resources and opportunities for visually impaired teenagers to develop in the art field and
build up their self-confidence in future diversified development, we have raised over RMB16,000 for blind children’s
choir trainings. Such activity successfully boosted our employees’ sense of identification with our corporate culture
and their support for public welfare, and passed the culture and spirit of love of Nan Hai to their children and family
members.

BMFAEREESVFEEMERNERAEEZERMEE RIS EBATEHRRBEEZZHEEERNED o
HEEER BoTtr BREESRBEMNIIRT < FIHRIMETEIHEE VLN RARBRME TS ARE
RS - FRIRERT T RHEENXERMAENBRERIRER X -

)
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6. GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY (Continued) 6. [ECIfEiilt® (#§)

(I Windows to the Heart Film-watching Event

(Z) LEERED
On 15 October 2019, the White Cane Safety Day, “/& B &t &l successfully organized “& #£ K #", a film-watching
events for visually impaired people. With professional visual explanations, more than 90 visually impaired viewers and
their families watched the film for free. To celebrate the 70th anniversary of the founding of the PRC, Nan Hai has
selected “My People, My Country”, the most valuable film. The movie was about the ordinary people met their
destinies at that time in history. All visually impaired viewers with national flags in their hands listened attentively and
applauded from time to time to show their patriotism.
201910 A 1S BRIFRE AR - BEGFEIRINER T [BEAM | RERABZES - BRAEENTHEEERA
B ORUBEERREBLE REREY - REEMNTBKL70 AFHE  MEHENRBERSHNF
F— (BAMRNERD) - Zhh—EETBANGE  EREALCHELTIN  AERER—8B  FHIN
AREEHRMFRENE - AORE - TRERER R —HRERRNERL -

The warm and thoughtful volunteer services provided by 37 employees at such film-watching event delivered
extensive social impacts. Thanks to the presence of our brand, more people paid attention to the cultural activities
and entertainment of visually impaired people. Meanwhile, the brand awareness of “Dadi Cinema” and “Orange Sky
Golden Harvest” under the Group has also been improved.

B BR - 37 2B ITRE TREM A ERERT - WalETEZOLEUE - EEFRHmEMEEZ A
BT RRE AR B AL IR EE A E - RRT - 858 T AR EE T AR E B RERZ AN @R E

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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6. GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY (Continued) 6. [Elf&it® (&)

Case — Caring event held by HKO01

ROIDE— BRI BLXRER

‘01 Heart” [ DEFE]

In January 2019, the Group established “01 Heart”, a crowdfunding 20191 AR & FE T EEEE R ER N L
platform for online and offline interactive activities with fundraising KR EZEF & T01LE] BREKE B&E
functions, to raise funds for charity groups focusing on poverty B - BYE B BERENZEE EREER - HFIH
alleviation, emergency assistance, medical assistance and education. 2 AE{E 1L B B 8 % 55 25 1t B AR 0R = 298 #0 T
We look forward to helping more disadvantaged groups by providing 8 - EsiBHERBENED °

food and clothing and even alleviating intergenerational poverty.

In the past year, we have raised nearly HK$2 million in total for about @& —F » M ANIMEZEES XLES
100 charities. 3T 200 BB ITTHEZR o

“Kind Friday”
[ARELE]

In 2019, “Kind Friday” has raised over HK$0.16 million for 13 charity
projects related to food distribution, elderly care and poverty alleviation
with the themes of “EZERBNIZE ", "EHFAZL " and "#ETAEE " As
such, these charities that are lack of resources will be able to continue and
extend its services for the grassroots.

20196 @ [AIRLE] LB [ERRBNSEE ] [ZEMRR] & [#H
BE|AEE  R1I3EEKE KEMKEHBNESIHEETSE
R AHEGR BB ERZERNESWREEIALE R
BEHEEBRREZRRE -

)
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA STATEMENTS figg— : MIBEZEREHRE

Environmental KPI REHBENER Unit By m
Greenhouse gas emissions BEREHKE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 &2) BERBHNEE (B 182) tonnesof (0e  MW_H{HEESE 134,29815
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity BERBHKRE
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity per square meter S FE A KARAFENEE tonnesof CO.e/  MEZ&ALHx

square meter B2/ FHRK 008
Fuel consumption RELEFE
Natural gas consumption AARA= m? K 38,998
Vehicle gasoline consumption BREANTH liter Ft 127,292
Vehicle diesel consumption ELrpEasl P liter Ft 25,179
Energy consumption BRI
Total electricity consumption BEEE kWh FRE 200,894,326.21
Electricity consumption intensity per square meter EERE (BFRK) KWh/square meter T EBS /F J5 5K 125.15
Purchased steam INBZR tonnes 7] 2.880.81
Municipal water consumption mBAKE
Total municipal water consumption MHAKEE tonnes WA 1,400,648.15
Municipal water consumption intensity per square meter B AKEE (75 K) tonnes/square meter I,/ 55K 087
Reclaimed water consumption HkERE
Total reclaimed water consumption HKEREE tonnes 7] 34,098
Hazardous waste BEBEY
Hazardous waste generated BERENELS kg T 8,087.06

(including computers, batteries, used ink cartridges (BES B
and toner cartridges) BEELRENE)

Other hazardous waste HitWBEEREEY piece 1 7,081
Hazardous waste intensity per employee BEBEEWRE(BREI)  kg/lemployee /8T 043
Non-hazardous waste BEREY
Non-hazardous waste generated BEREVELS kg TR 3,951,163.2
Decoration waste generated EBNREES kg TR 546,000
Non-hazardous waste intensity per employee EEEEYRE (BREI)  kg/employee /BT 23935
Non-hazardous waste recycled EEEZEYIEINE kg TR 209,089
Paper consumption BEREAE
Paper ok kg Tr 37,274.28
Paper consumption intensity per employee BRFERTE(BEETI) kg/employee Tr/BI 198

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE

DI

ERRR

A. Environmental
A  REHE
A1 Emissions

Al HERD

A2 Use of Resources

N ERER

General Disclosure

ALl
Al12
A13
Al4
A1S5

A6

—RKE

General Disclosure
A2.1
A2.2

A23
A24

A25

—RBE
A2
A22
A23
A24
A25

AREESD RS

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
ARBERREREER KRN BEREERENNELS
0 @QEE : RO EFHETABEATENEBEERROINER -
PR KRR B

RERBEEREREE -

MELRERENEERER -

MELBEERENEERER -

R E BN R KR -

HlEBEERBEERENNGE HEELENEBRAERR -

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
and intensity.

Water consumption in total and intensity.

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per unit
produced.

BRERER(BRER  KREMRE) BB -

ERRASNERR,/TRELR(NE - fslh) BRERTE -
RRKERTE -

T RE IR (E P Rkt B TS AR ©
HRSKEERKRR B EFREE - URRT KRG BIRAERR -
HRmARAEMHNEERBLEENIEE -

PHgg— - BiXP(IRER - HERE

Relevant chapter

of this report

REENRERED

Environmental protection

Carbon emission
management
Carbon emission
management
Waste management
Waste management
Carbon emission
management
Waste management

RARE

R mERE
REEE R
BENER
BENER
REEEE
BENER

Environmental protection

Carbon emission
management

Water resource
management

Energy consumption

Water resource
management

Not applicable as no
packaging material is
manufactured or
produced by the Group

RERE

REEE 2
KERER

RERFEE

KERER
TER - AEEERE
FEEBENMH
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APPENDIX II: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued)

Descriptions

ERAR

A3 The Environment
and Natural Resources

MIRERARER
B. Social
B. #EERE

B1 Employment

B2 Health and Safety

P
e

B2 2%

N

S

B3 Development
and Training

B3 HE K3

General Disclosure
A3

8
A3

General Disclosure

B1.1
B1.2
—RBE

B1.1
B1.2

General Disclosure

B2.1
B22
B23

—REE

B2.1
B22
B23

General
Disclosure

B3.1

B3.2

—RBE
B3
B3.2

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
REETAHRERRREREXEATEBOHE -

BB RBHRRERRRERNEATERERNERFBYENTH -

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
BRHMLFE BMERE IERE- BRE TEEE  Zulk kI
BARE B REMOBRLETHETAREAYENRBEE RAD)
AR o

IR BREE  FRAR R DNES RS -

Rith - FRAR MR DHEERKLE -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRRMZ2TERGRRREEHEBELEEN

@BR : kb BTHETAREAY ENHBEZRADINER -
RIEMEMETHABRLE -

RIGHRAIEAS

HPRANBRBREZ2HEN  UREHRTRERN %

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

BRRMTEERTIERANABRIEENECR - 55 -
RUERREEERNNSKIIEEBDL
RUERIREERERNZ D  BRERBTMZ AN TR -

Nan Hai Corporation Limited / f)@1ZR GRS

e — : BIXF(IBIR  HERE
RWEESRE](H)

Relevant chapter

of this report

RBEEARERED

Sustainable construction
environment
Addressing climate change

ARENRERS
nERIEE (Y

Employment rights

Employment rights
/
=

[E(RIEMN

/

Health and safety
Health and safety
Health and safety
Health and safety
(s
(s
(s
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Nurturing talents
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APPENDIX II: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued)

Descriptions

EERE
B4 Labour Standards

B4 &5 T

B5 Supply Chain
Management

Bs LR E R

B6 Product Responsibility

Bo EmE (T

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIG - HLEKEIBHRS

General
Disclosure

B4.1

B4.2
—BBE

B4.1
B4.2

General
Disclosure

B5.1

B5.2

—RKE
BS.1
B5.2

General
Disclosure

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B64
B6.5

—REE

B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B64
B6.5

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
BRMIEETHEHSTIH

@K kb BTHETABEAR %mm@&@&%%m%ﬂ
MLMﬁﬁﬁrmmhﬁuﬁﬁEI&ﬁﬂ
?Lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁmm*%°

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

ERHERENRE R eRBRHBE - REER
RHREDOHEEHE - /
WL AEERARENEN MARTABENNMERHE - AREHE REER
BIEBITRER R
Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations ~ Customer orientation
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health ~ Customer orientation
reasons.
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt ~ Customer orientation
with.
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property ~ Customer orientation
rights.
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Customer orientation
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are  Customer orientation
implemented and monitored.
EmEE FUMRUERNRENEERERZSE BE SEXMBEEN XFPARE
BRI AR :
QBE : RO)ETHETARERZENABERLADINEH -
EESEERERRUTRZ2ERFEAMALRNEDIL - EFRE
RERREMRRBORFHEUREEAE - XPRE
fl g E R REAEEERWENED - XPRE
TS BT AR REREYWIER o XFPRE
HOHBEERRERLBICR - ARBBRITRERAE XFPRE

Annual Report 2019 / —&—h&FE-

Relevant chapter

of this report

RBEEARERED

Employment rights

Employment rights

Employment rights

ERAEN

[ERAEN
ERIER
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Descriptions

ERAR

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 RE)5

B8 Community
Investment

B8R E

APPENDIX II: INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
ESG REPORTING GUIDE (Continued)

General
Disclosure

B7.1
B7.2
—RBE
B7.1
B7.2

General
Disclosure

B8
BS.2
—RBE

B3.1
B32

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BRMILSES  9R  HERERER

@K : RO ETHETAREATYENRRZZRRIINEH -
RERARNHEBTARAERREY D ELENBSHARMINHE RFDE
=i

R EEERREER  ARABRTRERL

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities' interests.

Focus areas of contribution.

Resources contributed to the focus area.

BRAHE2 ERBEREEMELEFRNEREXB B EZRLEN S
MR

SRR

ESTERMBAER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

|IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NAN HAI CORPORATION LIMITED
FEBERARAAE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Hai Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 126 to 290, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash-generating units (“CGUs")

(Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s critical
accounting estimates and assumptions set out in note 4.1)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had goodwill of HK$5,218,765,000 which is
allocated to the CGUs of cinema operation, innovative business, enterprise
cloud services and property development segments for annual impairment
testing.

The Company's directors have concluded that there was an impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to HK$32,174,000 and HK$23,595,000 for the CGUs of
cinema operation and innovative business segment respectively. This
conclusion was based on the impairment testing carried out by the
management for these CGUs in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
stated in note 2.21 which is set out in detail in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, which involved significant judgement and assumptions
with respect to the determination of the pre-tax discount rates and the
estimation of the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment testing of goodwill and other assets of the
relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the impairment testing
involved significant management judgement and estimates as explained
above.

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / m)812 R &R/

MEFEER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other assets
attributable to the cash-generating units (“CGUs")
(Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment above
included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations for impairment testing;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth rates applied
to the impairment testing;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budget
and considering the reasonableness of the budget;

—  Checking the value in use calculations mathematically;

—  Comparing the actual performance in 2019 with the forecast in 2018;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a change
in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

Fair value determination of investment properties

(Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the Group’s
accounting policy set out in note 2.8)

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group's
investment properties amounted to HK$4,787,476,000 as at 31 December 2019
and the Group had recognised a gain on fair value change on investment
properties of HK$1,751,377,000 in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties was determined by
adopting valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs,
assumptions and judgements with assistance by an independent qualified
valuer.

We have identified the fair value determination of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the financial significance of the amounts and that
significant estimates and judgements are involved in the fair value
determination.

1& 1 % BN M ¥R 5
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Fair value determination of investment properties
(Continued)

Our response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s determination of investment
properties fair value above included:

—  Reviewing the valuation report from independent qualified valuer and
holding discussion with management and independent qualified valuer
to understand the valuation basis, methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;

—  EBvaluating management’s process in respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by independent qualified valuer;

—  Evaluating of the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
independent qualified valuer;

—  Selecting samples from the Group's investment property portfolio and
obtaining the underlying data including comparables of market
transactions used by the independent qualified valuer and assessing
whether these are appropriate; and

—  Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the changes
in fair value of investment properties resulted from the valuation was
reasonable and consistent with market trends to our knowledge.

Adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

(Refer to note 3.1, 13 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group’s accounting policy set out in note 2.16A)

The Group operates in the cinema operation, and has entered into various
leases as lessee primarily in respect of cinemas. HKFRS 16, is first effective for
the current financial period. The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
approach and recognised all the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits and non-
controlling interests at the date of initial application. The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16. At 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$6,022,195,000 and
HK$5,025,820,000, respectively.

The measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets requires
management to make judgements in respect of the length of the lease terms
where the leases contain extension or termination options, to determine
appropriate discount rates, and to apportion contractual payments where the
Group has separated non-lease components contained within the same
contract as a lease. In the absence of the interest rate implicit in the lease, the
calculation of the present value of the future lease payments also requires
management to use significant estimates in determining an incremental
borrowing rate for any given lease.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

We identified the identification and measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets as a key audit matter because of the risks that existing leases
subject to transition or leases entered into or modified during the period and
consequential impacts relating to HKFRS 16 adoption are not completely
identified, accounting policies, transition options and practical expedients are
not appropriately applied, or disclosures applicable when the Group is a lessee
are incomplete, inaccurate or not fairly presented. There are also risks that
transition and year end date recognition and measurement adjustments
related to discount rates, lease terms and other estimates are inappropriate as
these judgements may be subject to management bias.

Our response

Our audit procedures to identify leases and to measure lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application included the following:

— Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal controls in
place to ensure the identification and recognition of leases in order to
assess the completeness of the population of leases to be capitalised
with reference to the selected transition approach and any practical
expedients applied;

—  Evaluating the appropriateness of the transition approach and
accounting policies adopted, including the application of practical
expedients and recognition exemptions available under HKFRS 16,
compared to the requirements of HKFRS 16;

—  Examining, on a sample basis, the list of leases compiled by management
and inspecting the associated contracts and other relevant information
to assess management's conclusion that these contracts meet the lease
definition under HKFRS 16;

—  With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, evaluating the
methodology adopted by management for determining the discount
rates with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 16 and assessing the
reasonableness of the data and significant assumptions adopted by
management to determine the discount rates based on the length of
the lease terms, repayment patterns and our knowledge of the Group's
available debt financing arrangements;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Our response (Continued)

—  Re-performing, on a sample basis, the calculation of the lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, testing the accuracy of the data used in the
calculation compared to the lease and other relevant documentation,
and assessing the reasonableness of management’s significant
judgements and assumptions adopted when determining the length of
the lease term where the lease contains extension or termination
options or was modified during the period compared to our
understanding of the Group’s business and industry practice; and

—  Assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of leases, including transition disclosures and disclosures in
relation to significant accounting judgements and estimates, with
reference to the requirements of HKFRS 16.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate Number P04434

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

#n o W m

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 20194 12 A31 BIEFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Bt & FET FHTT
Revenue Wz 5(a) 9,321,212 16,789,451
Cost of sales and services provided SHE RIRHARTS 2 KA 8 (4,138,837) (6,062,856)
Gross profit EF 5,182,375 10,726,595
Other operating income H 40 WA 5(b) 719,751 678,316
Selling and marketing expenses HEMTMIGHERERY (2,525,204) (3,776,/421)
Administrative expenses THRAX (960,119) (1,332,717)
Other operating expenses H iR &L (1,950,017) (2,145,993)
Finance costs AR 7 (1,368,717) (1,095,940)
Expected credit loss (‘ECL") on financial SRMEEZTEHEEEE
assets ([TEEAEEEED (46,202) (37,415)
Fair value change on financial liabilities at 22t B{ENIE 2R ER 1
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MRARBENERREE])
ZEMABEANBEEY 32 24,342 59,997
Share of results of associates i NI E (18,992) 12,273
Share of results of joint ventures BRI EEZELE 249 466
Gain on disposal of non-current assets RERSELNE ZIERD
held-for-sale B2 W 19 - 19,649
Gain on fair value change on investment  R&EYME QR BESS) 2 Wz
properties 14 1,751,377 315,371
Profit before income tax FRS %A a Al 8 808,843 3,424,181
Income tax expense s 9 (1,450,269) (2,449,836)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(E8), RmF (641,426) 974,345
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: LA A +FE(EER (BE), %R
Owners of the Company RARGEE A (561,415) 1,140,854
Non-controlling interests IR (80,011) (166,509)
(641,426) 974,345
HK cent HK cent
AL AL
(Loss)/Earnings per share for (loss)/ FEREDQTEE AERS (FE)
profit attributable to the owners EA2ER (EE) B
of the Company during the year 11
— Basic — HR (0.82) 1.66
— Diluted —#E (0.82) 1.63
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AEETRAWNARE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE 20194 12 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EBE) BT (641,426) 974,345
Other comprehensive income, including Hith2HEE  BEEFIERE
reclassification adjustments
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HE#/TEEN S EEEmR 2B ¢
profit or loss:
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value R A R BENEHA 2 KR IE
through other comprehensive (MRAREBEEREMEEEERE])
income (“FVOCI"), net of tax LEREEZAABEE
(HBBiR) 39,963 4,836
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEfEEN DR Bmic A -
profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of financial BEGINETE I TS RR 2 [E 548
statements of foreign operations (226,749) (645,711)
Exchange loss on translation of financial BEBINGEE DRI IERER 2
statements of foreign associates b 5 /518 (4,110) (5,139
Exchange loss on translation of financial BREGING EDETIEHRTZ
statements of foreign joint ventures i 5 518 (214) (94)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMZEKE  BFEEH
including reclassification adjustments DEEAE (191,110) (646,108)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EKEETE (832,536) 328,237
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LT A TFEE 2 EUNSALE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ Y =N (753,658) 507,150
Non-controlling interests JEIERE RE RS (78,878) (178,913)
(832,536) 328,237
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wn O B 5 A 0 ¥ %

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A 31 H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERBE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&E 13 9,382,329 5,217,394
Investment properties wEMZE 14 4,787,476 757,669
Prepaid land lease payments under KEHET 2N LiHES
operating leases 15 - 22,860
Interests in associates =W 17 102,401 134,326
Interests in joint ventures RESBDE 7R 18 28,498 30,688
Amounts due from related parties JE UK A ZE 5 28 50 165,959 430,711
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREBEREMEHE
WRRIEr & E 23 226,705 192,436
Financial assets at FVTPL EBAREBERERKRERE 2
TRIEE - 112
Long term trade receivables R HEIEWE 5 5/ 18 24 1,079 764
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables #& 4 + Fa5t F/ I8 & E th & I 7k 18 20 587,011 770,140
Intangible assets BEEE 21 6,419,076 6,516,732
Deferred tax assets EETRIBEE 36 1,338,789 930,791
Pledged and restricted bank deposits AR R GIRITFH 25 2,647,222 3,755,612
25,686,545 18,760,235
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 22 11,913,722 14,359,683
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEAREBEREREREREZ
SREE 6,560 82,481
Trade receivables BUE 58 24 486,166 538,800
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 « FB5t Zk I8 & E fth & I 7k 18 20 3,413,220 2,923,593
Amounts due from associates JFE W & R B kIR 28(b) 24,426 15,129
Amounts due from joint ventures B A &S ETIA 28(c) 836 2,327
Amounts due from related parties JrE Y 38 5 FOR 50 279,749 2,004
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R Z RS8R T 25 8,330,343 3,207,363
Cash and cash equivalents ReLZERIRESIER 25 743,055 1,334,598
25,198,077 22,465,978
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FERTE S 508 26 3,132,872 1,894,306
Other payables and accruals A FE A FRIE M FEETE A 27 1,682,158 2,123,644
Contract liabilities AREE 9,411,830 4,337,189
Provision for tax T BB 4,652,025 4,844,022
Amount due to a director R—ZESHIA 28(a) 12,552 65,132
Amounts due to associates IR BB N B FRIE 28(b) 5,180 5492
Amounts due to related parties REAE T 78 50 232,104 178,959
Other employee benefits HEibfEg EtaF 33 28,451 16,923
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 15,173,454 6,305,091
Finance lease liabilities BEHERE 30 - 42,078
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 439,400 -
Convertible and exchangeable bonds ATRRS I 7] IR E 5 31 - 1,150,721
Financial liability at FVTPL BAREBEREREREREZ
SRAaE 32 - 21476
34,770,026 21,485,033
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EEREHE) EERE (9,571,949) 980,945
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 16,114,596 19,741,180
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO BN R ER R

As at 31 December 2019 720194 12 A31 H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
B =E FET T
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Long term trade payables RHEENE 5588 26 212 409
Other employee benefits HiEEEA 33 36,508 27,260
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 3,679,580 11,913,914
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 30 - 48,012
Lease liabilities HEEE 30 5,607,441 =
Provision for warranty RIEHEHE 35 2,575 3,886
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEREREREEZ
eHMBE 32 2,569 5,435
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 36 1,491,382 786,925
10,820,267 12,785,841
Net assets EEZFE 5,294,329 6,955,339
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 37 686,455 686,455
Reserves i 39 4,009,545 ,513,308
Equity attributable to the Company’s &R T A A E(L#ER
owners 4,696,000 6,199,763
Non-controlling interests IR RS 41 598,329 755,576
Total equity RSB 5,294,329 6,955,339
On behalf of the Board RERESZS

Yu Pun Hoi
TRE
Director

EF

Liu Rong
EES

Director

EF

Annual Report 2019 /



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mORENSEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 20194 12 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZRERE
Profit before income tax TS 15t B A 808,843 3,424,181
Adjustments for: B TIIEE FHE
Interest income F B HA (194,132) (231,917)
Finance costs BB R A 1,368,717 1,095,940
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENLRETE 1,388,383 1,094,751
Amortisation of intangible assets other than PEFEEE B A E
goodwill 144,271 150,953
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - BB KR E M 21,464 61,012
Write-off of intangible assets other than PRI E 2 B A E M
goodwill 38,557 70,327
Write-off of inventories FEME 2,406 81,318
Operating lease charges on prepaid land leases AT T & 7 &L HE 1A - 524
ECL on financial assets CREE ZTEREESS 46,202 37,415
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEUCE 5 7RIE I L b JE WRIE
receivables and other receivables REBERD - (4,250)
Provision for impairment of property, M - BB &R EREREE
plant and equipment 15,968 43,185
Provision for impairment of intangible assets TEFBEE B EERBERE
other than goodwill 1,507 25,938
Provision for impairment of goodwill R E R 55,769 180,836
Provision for warranty RIERE - 401
Provision for impairment of interests in B R B 2 R E R
associates 2,853 -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE - BERRHEZ
equipment, net (Wa) /ERFE (9,473) 9,634
Fair value change on financial assets BEAREBERNERRRE Rl EE
at FVTPL, net ZARBEZEEFE (4,723) 34,058
Fair value change on financial liabilities at FVIPL 32 ARBERESZEREEZ ¢mAE
ZARBEEY (24,342) (59,997)
Gain on fair value change on investment WEMEAABEZ S RS
properties (1,751,377) (315,371)
Gain on trading of financial assets at FVTPL BAnBERERREEZEMEE
ZEE WS (11,286) (21,895)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets BERELE ZIERBEE 2 W
held-for-sale - (19,649)
Dividend income AR 2 A (960) (5,731)
Share of results of associates AN E 18,992 (12,273)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEE R (249) (466)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIRENSHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE 20194 12 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Operating profit before working capital changes &84 & E B 5 2 48 & i ) 1,917,390 5,638,924
Decrease in inventories FERD 569,746 562,304
Increase in trade receivables, deposits, EWE SFE - e - FARFIE

prepayments and other receivables e H A 8 W SR IR S8 0 (481,967) (55,050)
Increase in trade payables, other payables and ERNEBS5IE - BT 5RIE

accruals and other employee benefits M EETE A K& E {2 B 18 1 1 1,089,376 396,361
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities adBaEEN i) 4,972,346 (2,694,954)
(Increase)/Decrease in amounts due JRE A B2 k0B (2 0), R

from related parties (5,224) 1,919
Decrease in amounts due from joint B E & EFIBR D

ventures 1,470 36
Increase in amounts due from associates JE i Bk 2 N B R IE IR AN (9,727) -
Increase in amounts due to related parties R BB T sRIEIE N 57,343 54,344
Cash generated from operating activities AR T BT % 8,110,753 3,903,884
Income taxes paid B ETSH (950,392) (1,641,926)
Net cash generated from operating activities AR T BT E & R EE 7,160,361 2,261,958
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHZHERE
Payments to acquire intangible assets BB EE 2R (227,435) (231,232)
Payments to acquire property, plant and BBEME BB MREZ MR

equipment (386,361) (674,530)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets BRERBEHEKAIIR @ MEE

at amortised cost FrS 3R - 130,024
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets BRERENE ZIERBEEFSRIEA

held-for-sale - 34,667
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of WEE B A AR EE ZIRE R T F5E

interests in subsidiaries - (333,891)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of assets WEEBEEL LML F58 (2,262) -
Decrease/(Increase) in long term deposits, RAES - HtbEREIE R EK

other receivables and amount due —REREH R (Em)

from a related party 40,774 (175,532)
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged and restricted BRI & 2R BRI T ()R

bank deposits (4,207,150) 1,321,796
Interest received BFIE 155,425 178,527
(Increase)/Decrease in guarantee deposits (1) RERE RS (4,439) 69,418
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL ERARBERNERERRE 2

SRIBERD 92,042 98,419
Increase in financial assets at FVOC| BRANEEREMEEKERE 2
RLEEE N - (53,087)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BERREMSHIE

plant and equipment 58,012 326
Dividend received/Investment withdrawal from B —RIBMA AT R —EE& L D%

an associate and a joint venture BR 8. H % E 40,679 -
Dividend received from financial assets ElEemEERS 960 5,731
Payments for setting up and acquisition of B SZ R e B Bst 8 R B 2 R

associates - (11,229
Payment for setting up of a joint venture KL —REEREZ IR - (24,903)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities ¥ &% &) (BT, FrigiE & F58 (4,439,755) 334,504
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mORENSEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 20194 12 A31 BIEFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from financing activities mﬂﬁ)ﬁiﬂ ZEERE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 1T R EAMEEFTERIE 7,148,057 5366418
Repayments of bank and other borrowings Eﬁaﬁﬂ TREMEE (6,834,944) (9,147,899)
Repayments of capital element of finance lease EERERSABERSHY
liabilities - (56,584)
Interest paid ERFLE (1,151,954) (1,479,630)
Repayments of interest element of finance lease  {EERMEHEA BB EH
liabilities - (8,529)
Repayments of capital element of lease liabilities E%%ﬂ%%%$@%ﬁ% (387,524) -
Repayments of interest element of lease liabilities EEAE & EF S (520,743) =
Redemption of convertible and exchangeable 8 [0 AT #a f K2 AT 32 T‘*’fﬁ%
bonds (1,282,410) -
(Repayment to)/Advance from a director (M—BEZENR) RE—BEF 2N (52,170) 53,215
Payments to acquire non-controlling interests of — FLUEEFIE A Al FEIE AR AE RS 1 30
subsidiaries - (4,652)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity holder of A — R MI/E A R 3EEIRIEZSIHFA A
a subsidiary XATRRE (38,912) (198,118)
Dividend paid B E (102,968) (157,885)
Net cash used in financing activities BT TR % FE (3,223,568) (5,633,664)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R hERBRSE BRI IFE (502,962) (3,037,202)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1A1H Zﬁ@&gﬂfﬁﬁlﬁ E 1,334,598 4,397,710
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEERFFHATIFRE 2 E
on cash held (88,581) (25,910)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A831B2HEREEFHLIER 743,055 1,334,598
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash RERZEFRESBEEFERDN
equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand RITRERFR® 743,055 1,334,598

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / @8R ERAE)



s
(note 37)
(Hf&E37)
HK$'000

TR

686,455

686,455

686,455

Share
premium

RAEE
(note 39)
(W&39)
HK$'000

TEn

Capital
reserve

ERGE
(note 39)
(W&39)
HK$'000

Tin

2,448,044*

(9,241)

(35,799)

1% 2,403,004¢

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

ALEEEAEGER

General
reserve

-hiE
(note 39)
(H&E39)
HK$'000

Tén

202,454

202,454

264,551%

Share-
based

payments
reserve

Fvoci
reserve
BAREE
REM2E
WERE
il |
(note 39)
(B¥&E39)
HK$'000
Tén

WS
pd -+ |
(note 39)
(&£ 39)
HK$'000
Tén

3,256*

43,333 2313

(114418)*

Retained
profits

Exchange
reserve

EifE REEN
(note 39)
(&£ 39)
HK$'000

TR

HKS'000
TR

118,128  2,741,237*

- (604,006)

18,128 2,137,231

- (561,415)
(232,206) -
(232,206) ~ (561,415)

(62,097)

(102,968)

1,410,751

Total

Non-
controlling
interests

Total
equity

BE FEREE BR4E

HK$'000
TR

6,199,763

(604,006)

5,595,751

(561,415)
(192,243)

(753,658)

2135

(9,581)

14

(35,799)

(102,968)

4,696,000

(note 41)
(&an)
HK$'000

T

755,576

(82,438)

673,138

(80,011)
1133

(78,878)

7182

35799

(38912)

598,329

HK$'000
TER

6,955,339

(686,444)

6,268,895

(641,426)
(191,110)

(832,536)

2135

(2399)

(38,912)
(102,968)

5,294,329
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

'I' 5 >< f54

I‘l

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 20194 12 A31 BIEFE

BER

Equity attributable to the Company's owners

RAREE NEGER
Share-
hased Non-
Share Share Capital General FOC payments  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium resenve resenve resenve reserve Teserve profits Total interests equity
BAAEE
nEfEE
hEEE MRHR
Br ROEE EABE  REE  cBER BR ERBRE  REEA 25 FihER  ERsE
(note37)  (ote39)  (ote39  (note3d)  (ote3d)  (ote3)  (note39) (note41)
(7)) (Wsk3e)  (WEse) (W) (o) (Wek3e)  (AEsH3o) (Hisk4r)
HK000 HK000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK000 HKS'000
Thr Thr  TEr  TExr TR A TEr T TEr  TEn  TER
At January 2018 RNI8E1A1A 686455 965911 1564582 184034 = = 756068 1985580 6143230 105200 7195250
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 15 FOERABREENE ShRe - - - - - - - (437 (10433) - (1M453)
Fffect on adoption of HKFRS 9 ROERRREEIR IR R E - - - - (1580) - - (I0435)  (105989) - (105939)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R018%E1 A 18 (EE5)) 686455 965911 1564582 84034 (1,580) = 7566068 1776688 5932758 105200 6984778
Profit/(Loss) or the year EREH/(BB) - - - - - - T84 1140854 (166509 974345
Other comprehensive income E 2 EMR - - - - 4836 - (638540) - (6B (12404 (B46,108)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERPANGEE - - - - 483 - (6385400 1040854 507050 (178913) 328237
Transfer to generalreserve BA-—REE - 18420 - - = (18420) = = =
Reduction of share premium ROBRDEE - B0 9590 - - = - - - - -
Issue of new shares of asubsidiaryunderthe ISR AR BB EZAHR
restricted share award scheme - - (82,103) - - - - - (82,103) 82103 -
Share-based payments expenses (note 34) DARA S 2 B (Htt 34) - - - - 178 - - 178 - 178
Acquisition of non-controling interests BB AR 2R ER
in subsidiaries - - (339) - - - - - (339) 4317) (4652)
Acquisition of a non-wholly-owned subsidiay W —Ri3E2 BHBAR = - - - - - - - - 2801 2801
Dividends to non-controlling nterest of W-HHBRREERER LT
asubsidiary ZRE - = = = = = - - - (198118 (19%119)
Dividends relating to 2017 WIERBERS - - - - - - - (157885 (157889) - (157889)
At31 December 2018 R018E 12 A3 H 686455 1 244804 200454 325 178 118128 274137 6199763 795576 6955339
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE 20194 12 A31 HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nan Hai Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda, and its principal place of business is 12/F., The
Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in culture and media services, property development, enterprise cloud
services, news media business and innovative business. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16.

As at 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company to be Dadi Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 26 March
2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 126 to 290 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis which assumes the realisation of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business
notwithstanding that the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$9,571,949,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: net current assets of approximately
HK$980,945,000). The Board of the Company considers that the
Group will have sufficient resources to satisfy its future working
capital and other financing requirements in the next twelve
months based on that the Group is in the progress of renewing or
replacing certain other borrowings which will be due in the next
twelve months, and that with certain right-of-use assets, buildings,
other property, plant and equipment, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale, investment
properties and pledged bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$15,083,273,000 (31 December 2018:
HKS$11,997,194,000) in total being pledged for existing credit
facilities, the Board considers that the Group will be able to renew
or replace the existing facilities upon expiry.

1.

—REH

Nan Hai Corporation Limited ( 78 /& 12 f% A& IR
2R ([ARAR D) TR EREFMKSLZE
REMEAR @ ARAIZEMPFEEEU A
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Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda » H = E & ¥ ith 2h
MR BB AZEDIRERE ERIRF
D12 RRRIBRMDREBHERSNE
PR ([BBERFT]) ERET -

ARBREMBRAB(AEE]) TERE
XA B ERE R - FHEME AEER
% EEREBRAZHE - ARAN
BRREZEBFTHRNRHMIE6 -

R2019F12A31H * ARAEZRERK
TR AR BRMIERER A - BRES
EMAKSI 2 BR AT ©

HZE2019F 12 831 BIEFEZHBEREE
R2020F3 A6 EEETS([EFEDH
AEFIEE o

FEEHBFRER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 20194 12 A31 HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In view of above, the Board is of the view that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to satisfy its future working capital
and other financing requirements for at least the next twelve
months from the reporting date. Accordingly, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group's financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for investment properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparation of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

m Nan Hai Corporation Limited / m)812 R &R/
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE 20194 12 A31 HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Business combination and basis of consolidation 22 ¥ EHRGEEREEE
(Continued) (&)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the f